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To the Members of HCC Infrastructure Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of HCC Infrastructure Company
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act,
of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 32 in the financial statements which indicate that the Company incurred a net
loss of ¥17,728.99 lakhs during the year ended 31 March 2019, and as of that date, the Company'’s
accumulated losses amounts to ¥120,849.32 lakhs and current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
¥49,954.58 lakhs. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in the aforesaid note, indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. However, based on the factors mentioned in aforesaid note, management is of the
view that the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Emphasis of Matter

5. We draw attention to Note 34 to the financial statements, regarding Company's non-current investment in
HCC Concessions Limited ((HCON?), a joint venture company of the Company, aggregating 85,946 lakhs,
as 31 March 2019. The consolidated net worth of the aforesaid joint venture has been substantially eroded;
however, based on certain factors, including joint venture’s future business plans, growth prospects,
valuation report from an independent valuer and expected outcome of the negotiation/ discussion/
arbitration/ litigations and legal advice obtained in respect of certain claims, as described in the said note,
management is of the view that the realizable amount is higher than the carrying value of the investments
due to which these are considered as good and recoverable. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

6. We draw attention to Note 33 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, regarding the
Company's investments in its subsidiary company, HCC Power Limited, and the Company’s non-current
assets which include receivables due from such subsidiary company as at 31 March 2019 aggregating
¥ 462.04 lakhs (31 March 2018: Z 461.72 lakhs), ¥ 4,044.44 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 4,706.58 lakhs)
respectively. The net worth of the subsidiary company has been fully eroded and it has been incurring
losses, Based on the future plans and projections of the subsidiary company which have been developed
by the management using certain assumptions and estimates, the Company's management believes that
there is no decline in the carrying amounts of such non-current investments and the receivables are also
fully recoverable. The appropriateness of management's assessment on recoverability of the investment
and receivables is dependent upon the realisation of the related business plan as mentioned in aforesaid
note. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the standalone
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is obtained at the date of
this auditor's report.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

8. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
(financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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9. Inpreparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

11. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Other Matter

14. The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018 were audited by
the predecessor auditor, Messrs K.S. Aiyar & Co. who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those
standalone financial statements vide their audit report dated 2 May 2018.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

16. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

17. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

b)

g)

Chartered Accountsnts

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act;

the matters described in paragraph 4 on the Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern paragraph
and paragraphs 5 and 6 of the Emphasis of Matters paragraph, in our opinion, may have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the Company;

on the basis, of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as at 31 March 2019 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company
as at 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 07 May 2019 as per Annexure B
expressed an unmodified opinion;

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company as detailed in note 23 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2019;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2019;
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HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019;

Iv. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were

applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 which are not relevant to
these standalone financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

iy ST

Vijay D. Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 117961

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of HCC Infrastructure Company
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Chartered Accountants

details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no

material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable property (in the nature of ‘fixed assets’).

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i) (c) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the
Order are not applicable.

The Company has granted interest bearing unsecured loans to companies covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act; and with respect to the same:

(a) in our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not, prima facie,
prejudicial to the Company'’s interest.

(b) the schedule of repayment of the principal and the payment of the interest has not been
stipulated and hence we are unable to comment as to whether repayments/receipts of
the principal amount and the interest are regular;

(c) In the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest,
we are unable to comment as to whether there is any amount which is overdue for more
than 90 days and whether reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for
recovery of the principal amount and interest.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 in respect of
loans, investments, guarantees and security. Further, in our opinion, the Company has not
entered into any transaction covered under Section 185.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's services. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.
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HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Annexure A (Contd)

(vii)a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,

(b)

(viii)

(xi)

(xii)

Chartered Accountants

sales-tax, service tax, goods and services tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have not been regularly deposited
to the appropriate authorities and there have been significant delays in a large number of
cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the
year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

There are no dues in respect of goods and services tax, service-tax, duty of customs and
duty of excise that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute. The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax and value added tax
on account of dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature | Amount Amount paid Period to Forum where
statute of dues (Tin under Protest which the dispute is
lakhs) (T in lakhs) amount pending
relates

Income Tax Income 143.00 Nil | F.Y. 2014-15 Commissioner of

Act, 1961 Tax Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Tax Income - - F.Y.2011- Commissioner of

Act, 1961 Tax 2014 Income Tax
(Appeals)

Maharashtra | Value 45 | - F.Y. 2007-08 Deputy

Value Added | added Commissioner of

Tax, 2002 tax Sales Tax

The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to a financial institution or government
and no dues payable to debenture-holders during the year. The Company has defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to the following bank: -

(T in lakhs)
Bank Days Principal Interest Total
Yes Bank Limited 0 to 180 days - 86.58 86.58
181 to 365 days - 94.62 94.62
More than 365 days 1,185.92 181.13 1,367.05

The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and did not obtain any term loan during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable.

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable.
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Annexure A (Contd)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the
Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the standalone financiai
statements, as required by the applicable Ind AS. Further, in our opinion, the Company is not
required to constitute audit committee under Section 177 of the Act.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or
persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

iy

Vijay D.

Partner

oA Lo

Jain

Membership No.: 117961

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of HCC Infrastructure Company
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
(the “Company”) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(the “ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
the Company’s business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Annexure B (Contd)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that IFCoFR may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31

March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

iy 9(\';0\*"7

Vijay D. Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 117961

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

As at As at
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(T lakhs) (T lakhs)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 - 0.24
Investments in subsidiaries and joint venture 4 88,473.16 86,722.73
Financial assets
Loans 5 6,346.19 6,331.68
Other financial assets 6 230.99 717.87
Income-tax assets (net) 7 225.02 225.15
Total non-current assets 95,275.36 93,997.67
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 8 882.96 387.53
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1445 13.71
Other financial assets 6 4,011.69 500.71
Other current assets 10 2.25 0.39
Total current assets 4,911.35 902.34
TOTAL ASSETS 100,186.71 94,900.01
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 1 25,00 25.00
Other equity 37,258.30 (100,267.16)
Total equity 37,283.30 (100,242.16)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12 1.00 68,476.83
Other financial liabilities 13 8,028.49 324.21
Provisions 14 7.99 7.60
Total non-current liabilities 8,037.48 68,808.64
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 32,664.78 99,300.66
Trade payables 16
i) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -
ii) total outstanding dues other than (i) above 14.24 11.86
Other financial liabilities 13 21,635.32 26,969.65
Provisions 14 0.29 0.28
Other current liabilities 17 551.30 51.08
Total current liabilities 54,865.93 126,333.53
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 100,186.71 94,900.01

Notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the standalone financial statements
This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N / N500013

A Coadl 9%5 Qzﬁful“'? -

Vijay D. Jain Kishore Venkata Ramana Repaka  Amit Uplenchwar
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 117961 DIN : 07402969 DIN : 06862760

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019




HCC Infrastructure Company Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31 March 2019

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income

Expenses

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Loss before exceptional item and tax
Exceptional item

Tax expenses / (credit)
Current income tax
Deferred income tax
Loss for the year (A)
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
(a) Items not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Gain/(loss) on fair value of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation
- Income tax effect on above
(b) Items to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax (B)

Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (A+B)

Loss per equity share of each having face value of ¥10 each
Basic and diluted (in )

Notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our audit report of even

date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N / N500013

\/§M‘D@L7

Vijay D. Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 117961

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019

Note

18
19

20
21

22

23

26

Uefiido

Director
DIN : 07402969

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
® lakhs) ( lakhs)

3,489.94 720.00
1,161.13 725.03
4,651.07 1,445.03
40.29 39.76
9,415.93 20,845,59
0.24 0.68
921.85 51.05
10,378.31 20,937.08
(5,727.24) (19,492.05)

(12,000.00) -

1.75 -
(17,728.99) (19.492,05)
0.23 (0.36)
0.23 (0.36)
(17,728,76) (19,492.41)
(7.091.60) (7,796.82)

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
{
e
Kishore Venkata Ramana Repaka plenchwar

DIN : 06862760




HCC Infrastructure Company Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statemant for the year ended 31 March 2019

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before fax

Adjustment for
Depreclation expenses
Finance costs
Amortization of corporate guarantee
Interest Income on ICD
Interest on compensation
Profit on sale of investmenis
Interest on fixed deposit
Corporale guarantee commission income
Intorest on incomo tax rafund
ICD Interest written back
impaimment losses on financial assets
- On trade receivables
- Other receivables
- Invastment in subskdinrios
- ICD receivables including interest
- Other receivables

Operating profit before working capltal changes

Adjustments for changes in working capltal:
{Increase) in trade receivables
{Increase¥decrease in oihsr financial assets - non cumrent
{Increase) in ather current assets
Incrsasel(decreass) in other cumrenl ﬁnanclal liabilities
(¢ ) In current p
Increase in non current provisions
Increase in athor current liabiltios
Increase in trade payables

Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid (net of refund)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of investments

d)

Ir carried at ised costin iary ies {ur
Intercorporate deposit given to related parties

Refund of intercorporate deposil given to related parlies

Interesl recelved

Not cash used In investing activities {B)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term debl
Inter-corporate deposit taken from related parties
Interest paid

Net cash generated from financing actlvities (C)

Net Increase/ {(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equlvalants at the end of the year (Refer note 9)

Components of cash and cash equlvalents consldered only for the purpose of cash flow statement

In bank curent accounts
Balances as per stalement of cash flows

The cash flow slatement has been prepared under lhe indirect melhod as set oul in Indian A

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(® lakhs) (X lakhs)
(17,727.24) (19,492.05)
0.24 0.68
941593 20,845 45
- 0.14
(265.51) (611.46)
(749.03) 5
- {0.18)
- (11.51)
(95.87) (101.36)
(5.46) (0.14)
(41.83) -
13.46 -
2841 5
50.00 -
79214 =
12,000.00 -
3,415.24 629.57
(508.89) (66 66)
(14,769.94) 1414
(1.86) 0.21)
12,017.00 (128.58)
0.01 (0.72)
0.62 3.05
494.68 6.66
238 151
649.24 458.76
3.84 (33.58)
653.08 425.18
. 0.18
(1,800.00) -
(898.74) (2,328 04)
80.00 -
128.60 6.08
(2,490.14) (2,321.78)
5 (774.08)
3,603.02 1,924.88
(1,765.22) 65.22
1,837.80 1,216.02
e
0.74 (680.58)
13.71 694.28
14.45 13.71
14.45 13.71
14.45 137

of cash flows. Effective 1 April 2017, lhe Company adopted the

amendment to Ind AS 7, which require lhe entities to provide dlsclosures (hat enable users of linancial slatements to evaluate changes In llabililies arising from financing activities, including both changes

arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusionof a r

disclosure requirement. [Refer note 12,1(c)]

Significant non cash movements during the year excludes:
(i) Canversion of inlerest payable on intercorporate deposit taken from |
(ii) deposit from Hind|

(iif) Amount payable and recsiveable from HCC Real Estate Limited, a fellow subsidiary were netted off against each olher amounting lo 2 4,430 79 lakhs

deposil amounting to T 15,722.45 lakhs
Construction Company Limited and inlerest thereon converted into deemed capital confribution from Holding Company amounting to ¥ 155,254.22 lakhs

(iv) A loan taken by Charosa Wineries Limited, a fellow subsldlary {upto 6 February 2019) was novated to the Company during the year amounting to ¥ 3,773.49 lakhs,

Notes 1 o 35 form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

This is the Standalone Cash Flow Statement referred to In our audit report of even dale

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N / N500013

N wleb—

Partner
Membership No.: 117961

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Klshore Venkata Ramana Repaka

ing and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, lo meet the

~
planchwar

Director
DIN : 06862760



HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
Standalone S 1t of Ch

in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

A) Equity share capltal (Refer note 11)

Particulars Numt T lakhs
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and paid up
As at 31 March 2017 250,000 25.00
Issue of equity shares = -
As at 31 March 2018 260,000 25.00
Issue of equity shares - =
As at 31 March 2019 250,000 25.00
B) Other equity (¥ lakhs)
) Shares appli Reserves and surplus Total equity
Deemed capital
contribution money pending Capital reserve on Retained attributable to
allotment merger earnings equity holders
As at 1 Aprll 2017 2,249.40 1.00 604,00 (83,628.15) (80,773.75)
Loss for the year - - - (19,492.05) (19,492.05)
Other comprehensive foss - - - (0.36) (0.36)
Shares allotted . (1.00) . - (1.00)
As at 31 March 2018 2,249.40 - 604.00 {103,120.56) {100,267.16)
Loss for lhe year - - - (17,728.99) (17,728.99)
Additions during the year (Refer note i) 155,254.22 - - - 155,264.22
Other comprehensive income - - - 0.23 0.23
As at 31 March 2019 157,603.62 - 604.00 {120,849.32) 37,258.30

Nature and purpose of reserves

i. Deemed capital contribution

The halding company when transfers benefit to the Company in form of financial guarantee or inlerest free loan, a deemed capital contribulion account is created. This will be
derecognised on disposal of control in the Company. Additions during the year represents intercorporate deposits received from Hindustan Construction Company Limited in the
earlier years, which has been classified as deemed capital contribution during the current year,

ii. Shares money p g

This pertains to sum o be adjusted against shares consideration in eu of issue of 10,000 preference shares of ¥ 10 each.

iii. Capital reserve on merger

Capital Reserve was created on acquisition of an enlity in the earlier years.

iv. Retained eamings

Retained earnings represent profits / losses that the Company has eamed / incurred till date as reduced by dividends or other distribution paid by to the equity shareholders.

Notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

This is the Standalone Statement of changes in equity referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 001076N / N500013

Sy D Il —

Partner
Membership No.: 117961

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019

Kishore Venkata Ramana Repaka
Director
DIN : 07402969

Place: Mumbai
Date; 07 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ko

~

plenchwar

Director

DIN : 06862760




HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019

Note 1 Corporate Information

HCC Infrastructure Company Limited (the Company) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile
Companies Act, 1956 (CIN : U45400MH2010PLC210944). it is a 100% subsidiary of "Hindustan Construction Company Limited (HCC)". Shares of Its
holding company are listed on two stock exchanges in India. The purpose of incorporation of this Company is to carry on all types of infrastructure
activities whether on its own or through subsidiaries or SPV's,

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution of the Board of
Director on 7 May 2019.

Note 2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS")
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain financial assets and liabilities and share
based payments which have been measured at fair value, on an accrual basis of accounting.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the
guidance set out in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration
of the project/ contract/ service including the defect liability period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including
retention monies) within the credit period normally applicable to the respective project.

The Company's financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company's functional currency, and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS, requires the management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of
financial statements and the results of operation during the reported period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which are recognised in the period in which they are determined.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The Company has based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Valuation of investment in/ loans to subsidiaries and other group companies

The Company performs valuation for its investments in equity of subsidiaries for assessing whether there is any impairment in the fair value. When the
fair value of investments in subsidiaries cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flow model. Similar assessment is carried for exposure of the nature of loans and interest receivable thereon.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as expected earnings in future years, liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of these investments.

Deferred tax assets

In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets including Minimum Alternate Tax, management considers whether some portion or all of the
deferred income tax assets will not be realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future
taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred
income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable
income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are deductible, management believes that
the Company will realise the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realisable, however,
could be reduced in the near term, if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

Defined benefit plans

The cost and present value of the gratuity obligation and compensated absences are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, attrition rate and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.




HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
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Property, plant and equipment (Tangible assets)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and finance costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/
installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, plant
and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and
related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain
or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation

The useful lives have been determined based on the useful lives of assets as provided in Schedule 1l of Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation/
amortisation is provided as per the useful lives of the assets as per Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 using Straight Line Method (SLM). The asset’s
useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other
gains/(losses).

On transition to IndAS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April,
2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use the carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

The estimated useful lives are as below:
Computers : 3 years
Office Equipment : 5 years

An asset's carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater'than its estimated recoverable amount,

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In respect of equity investments (other than for investment in subsidiaries, Joint ventures and associates) which are not held for trading, the Company
has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in “the fair value of such instruments in OCI. Such an election is made by the
Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of transition for existing equity instruments/ initial recognition for new equity instruments.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCl is carried at FVPL.
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1 April 2016 of its

investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of these investments on the date of
transition i.e. 1 April 2016.
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Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
financial assets and credit risk exposures.

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its
initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on
12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of financial assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

b Equity instruments and financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

1) Initial Recognition
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

2) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss
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3)

vi

vii

(1]

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Where the Company issues optionally convertible debenture, the fair value of the liability portion of such debentures is determined using a market
interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible debenture. This value is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption of the debentures. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the instrument. This is recognised
and included in shareholders’ equity {net of income tax) and are not subsequently re-measured.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of the debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

Where the terms of a financial liability is re-negotiated and the Company issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability
(debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss; measured as a difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability and the Ffair value of equity instrument issued.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees’ state insurance, labour welfare fund and superannuation scheme
are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. The
above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The Company also provides for gratuity which is a defined benefit plans, the liabilities of which is determined based on valuations, as at the balance
sheet date, made by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in
respect of gratuity are recognised in the OCI, in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in OCI are not reclassified to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of plan
amendment or curtailment. The classification of the Company's obligation into current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report,

Leave entitiement and compensated absences

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. Leave entitiement, other than
short term compensated absences, are provided based on a actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit. Re-measurement, comprising of
actuarial gains and losses, in respect of leave entitlement are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognised as expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the related service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is
recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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viii Segment reporting

xi

xii

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating
decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating result of the whole Company as one segment of “Infrastructure development". Thus, as
defined in Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”, the Company's entire business falls under this single operational segment.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Also, the EIR amortisation is
included in finance costs.

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are added to the cost of such asset to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

Revenue recognition

Effective 1 April 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative catch-up transition method,
applied to contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method , the comparatives have
not been retrospectively adjusted. The following is a summary of new and/or revised significant accounting policies related to revenue recognition. The
effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in
exchange for those services. Revenue from services is accounted net of taxes.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price. The
accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is
at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are
accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the
existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

The impact on account of applying the erstwhile Ind AS 18 Revenue instead of Ind AS 115 Revenue from contract with customers on the financials
statemnents of the Company for the year ended and as at 31 March 2019 is insignificant.

Accounting for claims

Claims are accounted as income in the period of receipt of arbitration award or acceptance by client or evidence of acceptance received. Interest
awarded, being in the nature of additional compensation under the terms of the contract, is accounted as other income on receipt of favourable
arbitration award.

Other income
Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Interest in joint arrangements

As per Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements, investment in Joint Arrangement is classified as either Joint Operation or Joint Venture. The classification
depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor rather than legal structure of the Joint Arrangement. The Company classifies its
Joint Arrangements as Joint Ventures.

The Company recognises its direct right to assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of Joint Operations and its share of any jointly held or incurred
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. These have been incorporated in the financial statements under the appropriate headings.

Income tax
Income tax comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised as an expense or income in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except to the extent it relates to items directly recognised in equity or in OCI.

Current income tax

Current income tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions in accordance with
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expacted to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences between the financial statements’ carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax base. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognised in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realisation.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative Tax ("MAT") credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is probable that the Company will pay normal income
tax during the specified period
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Impairment of non-financial assets

As at each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired and also whether
there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognised in the previous periods. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Company determines the recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:

- In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets' fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the higher of cash
generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risk specified to the asset, In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market transaction are taken
into account. If no such transaction can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except for properties previously revalued with the
revaluation taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of
impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Profit and Loss

Trade receivables

A receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold or services rendered in the normal course
of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less provision
for impairment.

Trade payables

A payable is classified as a ‘trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or services received in the normal
course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are
unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and are usually settled as per the payment terms stated in the contract. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company and
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares).

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation. Provisions (excluding gratuity and compensated absences) are determined based on management's estimate required to settle
the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. In case the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance
cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates,

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, A contingent liability also arises, in
rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Note 3 Property, plant and equipment (Tangible assets)

(T lakhs)
Particulars Computers Office equipment Total
Gross carrying value (Deemed cost)
As at 31 March 2017 219 0.49 2.68
Additions - - -
Deductions/ disposals - - -
As at 31 March 2018 219 0.49 2.68
Additions - - 2
Deductions/ disposals - - -
As at 31 March 2019 219 0.49 2.68
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 31 March 2017 1.32 0.44 1.76
Depreciation charge for the year 0.63 0.05 0.68
Accumulated depreciation on disposals - - -
As at 31 March 2018 1.95 0.49 2.44
Depreciation charge for the year 0.24 - 0.24
Accumulated depreciation on disposals - - B
As at 31 March 2019 2.19 0.49 2.68

Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2018 0.24 - 0.24
As at 31 March 2019 - - -
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As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(T lakhs) (X lakhs)
4 Investments in Subsidiaries and Joint venture
Non-current
(Face value of ¥ 10 each, unless otherwise stated, fully paid up)
I. Investments in Subsidiaries
(i) Investments in equity shares at deemed cost (Refer note 4.1)
In subsidiary companies in India 55.00 105.00
55.00 105.00
(i) Deemed investment in subsidiary companies (Refer note 4,1)
(a) Deemed investment on inter-corporate deposits in India 1,800.00 -
(b) Deemed investment on fair valuation of corporate guarantee
-in India 671.60 67117
2,471.60 671.17
Total Investments in Subsidiaries (i + ii) 2,526.60 776.17
II. Investments in Joint Venture
(i) Investments in equity shares at deemed cost (Refer note 4.2)
In joint venture company in India 57,348.02 57,348.02
57,348.02 57,348.02
(ii) Investments in preference shares at amortised cost (Refer note 4.2)
In joint venture company in India 28,598 54 28,598.54
28,598.54 28,598.54
Total Investments in Joint Venture (i + ii) 85,946.56 85,946.56
Total Investments in Subsidiaries and Joint venture (I + ll) 88,473.16 86,722.73
Note 4.1 Detailed list of In its in Subsidiaries
I. Investments in equity shares at deemed cost
In subsidiary companies in India
- HCC Power Limited (Refer note 4A below)
500,000 (31 March 2018 - 500,000) equity shares 50.00 50.00
- Dhule Palesner Operations & Maintenance Limited
500,000 (31 March 2018 - 500,000) equity shares 50.00 50.00
Less: Impairment provision (50.00) -
- 50.00
- HCC Operations & Maintenance Limited 5.00 5.00
50,000 (31 March 2018 - 50,000) equity shares
55.00 105.00
Il. Deemed investment in subsidiary companies
(a) Deemed investment on Inter-corporate deposits
HCC Operations and Maintenance Limited 1,800.00 -
Sub-total (a) 1,800.00 -
(b) Investment carried at amortised cost in subsidiary companies (unquoted)
HCC Power Limited 412.05 411.73
HCC Operations and Maintenance Limited 259.55 259.44
Sub-total (b) 671.60 671.17
2,471.60 671.17
Note 4.2 Detailed list of Investment in Joint Venture?
1. Investments in equity shares at deemed cost
In Joint venture company in India
HCC Concessions Limiled (Refer note 4A below)
2,917,151 (31 March 2018 - 2,917,151) equity shares 57,348.02 57,348.02
57,348.02 57,348.02
li. Investments in preference shares at deemed cost
In Joint venture company in India
HCC Concessions Limited (Refer note 4A below) 28,598.54 28,598.54
285,985,361 (31 March 2018: 285,985,361)
0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares
28,598.54 28,598.54

~ Subsidiary as per the Act; however, classified as a Joint Venture under Ind AS

Note 4A

The Company has pledged the following shares in favour of the Yes Bank Limited as part of the financing agreements for facilities taken by the Company and by its subsidiaries HCC
Power Limited, HCC Operations and Maintenance Limited and Baharampore Farakka Highways Limited (subsidiary of joint venture), as indicated below:
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As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(T lakhs) (T lakhs)
Name of the Company Number of shares pledged
Equity Shares:
HCC Concessions Limited 688,637 636,100
HCC Power Limited 150,000 150,000
Preference Shares:
HCC Concessions Limited 67,133,349 56,006,020
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(T lakhs}) (T lakhs)
5 Loans
Non-Current
Inter corporate deposit to related parties (Refer nole 25) 6,763.44 6,331 68
Less: Loss allowance (417.25) -
Total non-current loans 6,346.19 6,331.68

Break-up of security details
Loans considered good - Secured - B
Loans considered good - Unsecured 6,346.19 6,331.68

Loans which have significant increase in credit risk = -
Loans - credit impaired 417.25 -
Total 6,763.44 6,331.68
Loss allowance {417.25) -
Total loans 246.1 9 6,331.68

Note - There are no loan due from any direclor or any officer of the Company, either severally or jointly with any other person, or from any firms or private companies in which any
director is a partner or a member.

Nature and Purpose of non current loans

As at As at
Name of Company Interest rate Repayment 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(¥ lakhs) (% lakhs)
HCC Concessions Limited 11.00% Repayable on demand 653.74 -
HCC Power Limited 11.00% Repayable on demand 4,044 44 4,296.68
HCC Real Estate Limited* 12.50% Repayable on demand 1,648.01 2,035.00
6,346.19 6,331.68

* The above receivables are secured by subservient charge on land of HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited, the fair value of land being ¥ 12,000 lakhs,

6 Other financial assets
Non-current

Interest receivable on ICD from related party (Refer note 25) 605.88 657.07
Less: Loss allowance (374.89) -
Receivable from relaled parties (Refer note 25) 20.42 2042
Less: Loss allowance (20.42) -
Other receivables 12,007.99 40,38
Less: Loss allowance (12,007.99) -
Total non-current financial assets 230.99 717.87
Current
Compensation receivable in lieu of termination (Refer note below) 3,651.35 -
Interest receivable on ICD from related party (Refer note 25) 460.34 500.71
Total current financial assets 4,011.69 500.71
Total other financial assets 4,242.68 1,218.58
Note:

The compensation receivable is being charged and hypothecated by the Company as first pari passu security interest in favour of Debenture Trustee for debentures issued by
Lavasa Corporation Limited.

Break-up of security details

Interest receivabie on ICD from related party
Interest receivable considered good - Secured -
Interest receivable considered good - Unsecured 691.33 1,157.78

Interest receivable which have significant increase in credit risk - 5
Interest receivable - credit impaired 374.89 -
Total 1,066.22 1,157.78
Loss allowance (374.89) -
Total loans 691.33 1,157.78

7 Income-tax assets (net)

i. The following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities:

Income tax assets 225,02 22515
Less: Income tax liabilities -
Total income tax assets (net)
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ii. The gross movement in the current tax asset/ (liability):
Net current income tax assets/ (liabilities) at the beginning
Add: Tax deducled at source

Less: Currenl income taxes

Net non-current income tax assets/ (liabilities) at the end

iii. Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:

Current income taxes (represents prior year losses)
Deferred income taxes”®
Income tax expenses/ (income) (net)

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(T lakhs) (T lakhs)
22515 191.39
1.62 33.76
(1.75) -
225.02 225.15
175 -
1.75 -

" The Company has not recognised deferred tax assets, in view of absence of reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred

tax assets can be realised

Total brought forward losses upto assessment year 2018-19, amounts to ¥ 97,250.78 lakhs (31 March 2018: % 78,547.02 lakhs) which can be carried forward between A Y. 2019-20

to AY. 2026-27)

Trade recelvables

Receivables from related parties (Refer note 25)
Less: Loss allowance
Total trade receivables

Break-up of security details

Trade receivables considered good - Secured

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total

Loss allowance

Total trade receivables

896.42 387,53
(13.46) -
882.96 387.53
88296 387.53
13.46 3
896.42 387.53
(13.46) :
882.96 387.63

Note - There are no receivables due from any director or any officer of the Company, either severally or jointly with any other person, or from any firms or private companies in

which any director is a partner or a member.

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

In current accounts
Total cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets
Balance with government authorilies

Prepaid expenses
Total other current assets

14.45 13.71
14.45 13.71
0.06
0.33

0.39
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As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
[ lakhs) (T lakhs)
11 Equity share capital

Authorised share capital

14,990,000 (31 March 2018: 14,990,000) equity shares of T10 each 1,499.00 1,499.00
10,000 (31 March 2018: 10,000) 0.1% Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 10 each 1.00 1.00
Total authorised share capital 1,500.00 1,500.00
Equity shares issued, subscribed and paid up share capital:

250,000 (31 March 2018: 250,000) equity shares of ¥10 each 25.00 25.00
Total issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 25.00 25.00

a) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
No. of shares T In lakhs No. of shares ¥ In lakhs
At the beginning of the year 250,000 25.00 250,000 25.00
Issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 250,000 25.00 250,000 25.00
b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares of the Company and shares held by Holding Company:

. As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Particutars No. of shares %holding No. of shares %holding
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid
Promoter
Hindustan Construction Company Limited 250,000 100% 250,000 100%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

c) Details of allotment of shares for consideration other than cash, allotments of bonus shares and shares bought back during past five years:
(i) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash - Nil
(ii) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - Nil
(iii) Aggregate number and ciass of shares bought back - Nil
d) Rights and restriction attached to equity shareholders:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. During the year ended
31 March, 2019, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders was T Nil (31 March 2018: Z Nil). In the event of liquidation of the

Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

e) Non cumulative redeemable preference shares
i} Reconciliation of 0.1% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

No. of shares ¥ In lakhs No. of shares ¥ n lakhs
At the beginning of the year 10,000 1.00 - -
Issued during the year . - 10,000 1.00
At the end of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of 0.1% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of the Company:

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

No. of shares

%holding

No. of shares

%holding

HCC Real Estate Limited

10,000

100%

10,000

100%

iiiy Conversion terms, rights and restrictions attached to non-cumulative redeemable preference shares:

i) The preference shares shall carry a dividend of 0.1% per annum. These are non cumulative and non convertible.
ii) Redemption of preference shares would be done as decided by the Board of Directors of the Company at any time after the period of 6 (six) months and prior to the

period of 20 (twenty) years from the date of issue of preference shares.
iii) The preference shares shall have no voting rights.

iv) The Preference Shares will not be listed on any Stock Exchanges unless required by any extant regulations.
v) In the event of liquidation of the Company before conversion/ redemption of 0.1% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares, the holders of 0.1% Non-cumulative
redeemable preference shares will have priority over equity shares in the payment of dividend and repayment of capital.
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As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
X lakhs) (T lakhs)
12 Borrowings (Non-current)
Secured
A) Term loans - Secured
Loan from bank 1,185.92 1,185.82
Less: Classified under other financial liabilities [Refer note 12.1(b) and 13] 1,185.92 118592

Subtotal (A)

Nature of security

a) Residual charge over identified receivables of Hindustan Construction Company Limited of amounting to ¥ 62,616 lakhs

b) Irrevocable and unconditional corporate guarantee of ¥ 20,000 lakhs given by Hindustan Construction Company Limited for securing the loan along with applicable interest

c) Irrevocable and unconditional undertaking given by Hindustan Construction Company Limited and HCC Infrastructure Company Limited to the bank with respect to liquidity
events conditions ,conditions related to accelerated repayments.

d) Pledge by the Company of 688,637 equity shares and 67,133,349 0.001% Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference shares held by it in HCC Concessions Limited, in
favour of the bank for securing the loan of ¥ 20,000 lakhs along with applicable interest

e) Irevocable and unconditional corporate guarantee of Charosa Wineries Limited for securing the loan of T 20,000 lakhs along with applicable interest

f) Second charge on entire assets of the Company (including moveable and immovable, fixed assets and current assets), excluding investments, both present and future

Interest rate and terms of repayment
Carrying interest rate of 12.5% p.a. (31 March 2018: 12.5% p.a) repayable in 5 years commencing from 1 January 2014 in equal quarterly instalments.

B) Inter Corporate deposits - Unsecured

Inter Corporate deposit from related parties (Refer note below and 25) - 68,475.83

68,475.83

Subtotal (B) A

Note :

During the year, ICD's payable to Hindustan Construction Company Limited has been transferred to deemed equity contribution from holding Company [Refer note (i) under
Statement of Changes in Equity]

The ICD's payable to HCC Real Estate Limited is adjusted against the receivables from the same party (Refer Note 5).

Inter corporate deposit from related parties ¥ lakhs)
. As at As at
Name of Company Rate ofinterest|  y1arch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Hindustan Construction Company Limited 12.50% - 65,246.22
HCC Real Estate Limited Interest free - 3.229.62
Total 68,475.83
C) Liability component of financial instruments [Refer notes 11{e) and 25]
Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

10,000 0.1% Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥10 each 1.00 1.00

Subtotal (C) 1.00 1.00
1.00 68,476.83

Total long term borrowings (A+B+C)
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12.1 Notes on borrowings:

(a) S y of default in repay t
Defauit in repayment of principal and interest as at 31 March 2019:
Particulars 0 - 180 days Above 180 days Total
Principal | Interest Principal | Interest Principal | Interest
Loan from bank -1 92.81 1,185.92 | 269.52 1,185.92 | 36233

(b) Other current financial liabililies" include balances amounting to  1,548.25 lakhs as at 31 March 2019 which were classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) by the lenders during earlier
years as there were continuing defaulls in repayments of interest and principal amounts. in lhe absence of confirmations from the lenders, lhe Company has provided for interest and other
penal charges on these borrowings based on the latest communication available from the respective lenders at the interest rate specified in the agreement. The Company's management
believes that amount payable on seltlement will not exceed the liability provided in books in respect of lhese borrowings

(c) Net debt reconclliation

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents
Current borrowings
Non-current borrowings
Net debt

Particulars

Net debt as at 1 April 2017
Cash flows

Repayment of borrowings
Interest expense

Interest paid

Other non-cash movements
- Acquisition (Merger)

- Fair value adjusiments

Net debt as at 31 March 2018

Cash flows

Interest expense

Interest paid

Other non-cash movements

- Borrowings converted into deemed equity
- Liabilities adjusted against receivables
Net debt as at 31 March 2019

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Tin lakhs ¥ In lakhs Tin lakhs
14.45 13.71 694.29
(43,172.67) (123,133.68) (101,020.92)
(1,186.92) (69,662.75) (69,714.35)
(44,345.14) (192,782.72) (170,040.98)
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
Cash and cash Non-current Current Total
equivalents borrowings borrowings o
694,29 (69,714.35) (101,020.92) (170,040.98)
(680.58) . (1,924.88) (2,605.48)
- 774.08 - 774.08
(384.14) (20,460.00) (20,844 14)
- . (65.22) (65.22)
- (1.00) . (1.00)
- (337.34) 337.34 -
13.71 (69,662.75) (123,133.68) (192,782.72)
0.74 - (3,603.02) (3,602.28)
- (930.86) (8,479.53) (9,410.39)
- - 1,7656.22 1,765.22
- 65,246.22 90,008.01 155,254.23
4,160.47 270.33 4,430.80
(1,186.92) (43,172.67) (44,345.14)
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15

Other financial liabilities

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(X lakhs) (T lakhs)

Non-current
Financial guarantee contracts (Refer note 25) 228.49 324.21
Other liabilities 7800.00 -
Total non-current financial liabilities 8,028.49 324.21
Current
Current maturities of long-term debt [Refer note 12.1(b)] 1,185.92 1,185.92
Interest accrued and due on borrowings [Refer note 12.1(b)] 362.33 181.13
Interest on Inter corporate deposits from related parties (Refer note 25) 10,145.57 23,651.89
Others

Due to related parties (Refer note 25) 3,924.44 136.91

Employee related payables 5.45 4,42

Other liabilities 5,909.29 1,707.34
Financial guarantee contracts (Refer note 25) 102.32 102.04
Total current financial liabilities 21,635.32 26,969.65
Total financial liabilities 29,663.81 27,293.86
Provisions
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 30)
- Gratuity 3.77 3.33
- Compensated absences 4.22 427
Total non-current provisions 7.99 7.60
Current
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 30)
- Gratuity 0.08 0.07
- Compensated absences 0.21 0.21
Total current provisions 0.29 0.28
Total provisions 8.28 7.88
Current borrowings (Unsecured)
Inter corporate deposits from related parties (repayable on demand)** (Refer note 25) 92/66K%18 99,300.66
Total current borrowings 32,664.78 99,300.66

**Inter corporate deposits taken from related parties at an effective interest rate of 11.00% p.a. repayable on demand.

16 Trade payables

17

Current

Trade payables : micro and small enterprises (Refer note below) - -
Trade payables : others 14,24 11.86
Total trade payables 14.24 11.86
Note:

The Company has not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/ payable as required under the said Act have been
on the basis of information available with the Company.

Other current liabilities
Statutory dues 551.30 51.08

Total other current liabilities 51.08
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(T lakhs) (T lakhs)
18 Revenue from operations
Operation and maintenance fees (Refer note 25) 720.00 720.00
Revenue from operations 720.00 720.00
Other operating revenue
Compensation in lieu of termination 2,769.94 -
Total revenue from operations 3,489.94 720.00
19 Other income
Interest income
-on inter corporate deposit (ICD) (Refer note 25) 265.51 611.46
-on compensation 749.03 -
-on unwinding on corporate guarantees (Refer note 25) 95.87 101.36
-on income tax refund 5.46 0.14
-on fixed deposit - 11.51
Other non-operating income
-profit on sale of investments - 0.18
-ICD interest written back (Refer note 25) 41.83 -
-miscellaneous Income 3.43 0.38
Total other income 1,161.13 725.03
20 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages 37.64 37.32
Contribution to provident funds and other funds (Refer note 30) 2.14 1.80
Staff welfare expenses 0.51 0.64
Total employee benefits expense 40.29 39.76
21 Finance costs
Interest expense on
- term loans 181.20 516.74
- inter corporate deposits (Refer note 25) 8,298.33 19,943.27
Other borrowing costs
- unwinding of discounted value of long term inter corporate deposit (Refer note 930.86 384.14
25)
- guarantee commission (Refer note 25) - 0.14
- others 5.54 1.30
Total finance costs 9,415.93 20,845.59
22 Other expenses
Legal and professional 29.21 43.04
Travelling 012 0.61
Director sitting fees (Refer note 25) - 0.80
Postage, telephone and fax 2.98 0.79
Printing and stationery expenses B 0.01
Loss allowances
- On trade receivables 13.46 -
- Other receivables 28.41
- Investment in subsidiaries 50.00
- ICD receivables including interest 792.14 -
Payment to auditors
- Statutory audit fees (excluding GST) 5.00 414
Miscellaneous 0.53 1.66
Total other expenses 921.85 51.05
Note:
(a) The Company is not liable to incur any expenses on CSR as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
23 Exceptional Items
Provision against commitment given towards purchase of debentures 12,000 -
(Refer note below)
Total exceptional expenses 12,000 -

Note :

Pursuant to Debenture Sale Purchase Agreement dated 29 September 2017, between HCC Operations & Maintenance Limited (subsidiary

company) with debenture holders of Lavasa Corporation Limited for purchase of debentures of Lavasa Corporation Limited, HC

Infrastructure Company Limited ("the Company") being an affili
its subsidiary. After assuming the liability, since the worth of Y
Insolvency Resolution Proceeding, the same has been pro
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Contingent liabilities and commitments

(A) Contingent labilitles
(i) Corporate guarantees given an behalf of subsidiary companies

(ii} Service lax and MVAT liligalion pending with depariment

(iii) Income tax liability that may arise in respect of which the Company is in appeals

(iv) Counler indemnities given lo banks in respect of conlracls executed by subsidiaries and joint ventures

{v) Provident fund:
Based on lhe judgement by the Honourable Supreme Courl dated 28 February 2019, past providenl fund liability, is not delerminable at present, in view of uncerlainty on lhe applicability of the judgement to the
Company with respecl to timing and the componenls of its compensation slructure. In absence of further clarification, lhe Company has been advised o await further developments in this matler lo reasonably
assess Lhe implicalions on its financial statements, if any

(B) Capital Commitments

(i) The Company has given a comfort letler to the Asset Care & Reconslruclion Enterprises Limited (ACRE) on behalf of its ullimate holding company - Hindustan Conslruction Company Limited where the
Company has agreed to pay Lhe third party if lhere is any shortfall in payments of HCC's liability. Total HCC's liability payable to ACRE amounts to ¥ 12,283.64 lakhs The Company has also agreed to pay lhe
shortfall amount from proceeds of arbilration of its project in downslream joint venlures - Farakka Raiganj Highways Limited and Raiganj Dalkhola Highways Limited

25

Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 24 Related Party Transactions

Names of related parties and nature of relationship

A) Holding Company
Hinduslan Construction Company Limited (HCC)

B) Subsidlarles

HCC Power Limited

Dhule Palesner Operations & Mainlenance Limited
HCC Operation and Maintenance Limiled

C) Subsidiaries of Joint Vent
Narmada Bridge Tollway Limited
Badarpur Faridabad Tollway Limiled
Baharampore-Farakka Highways Limited
Farakka-Raiganj Highways Limiled
Raiganj-Dalkhola Highways Limited

D} Fellow subsidiaries (with whom transactions have taken place during the year)

HCC Real Estate Limited
Charosa Wineries Limited (upto 6 February 2019)
Lavasa Corporalion Limited (uplo 30 July 2018)

E) Other Related Parties
Joint ventures

HCC Concessions Limited?*
Step down subsidiary
HCC Energy Limiled

Key Management Personnel

Mr Venkala Ramana Kishore Repaka
Mr Amit Uplenchwar

Mr. Aditya Pralap Jain

Mr. Arun Vishnu Karambelkar

Mr. Shripad Gailonde

Mr. Praveen Sood

Mr. Rajas Doshi

Mr. Anil Singhvi

# including through subsidiary companies

Direclor (w e f. 27 April 2018)

Director (w e f. 31 Augusl 2018)

Additional Director (w.e f 27 March 2019)
Director {(upto 28 April 2018)

Director (uplo 31 August 2018)

Director (uplo 31 March 2019)

Independent Direclor (uplo 9 September 2017)
Independent Director (upto 16 Oclober 2017}

A Subsidiary as per the Act; however, classified as a Joint Venlure under Ind AS

Country of
incorporation

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(X lakhs) (R lakhs)
20,800 00 20,800 00
450 450
142.86 -
36,923 39

Company's holding as at (%) *

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

India
India
India

India
India
India
India
India

India
India
India

India

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%
8545% 8545%
8545% 85.45%
8545% 64.09%
85.45% 64.09%
7691% 7691%
8545% 85.45%
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Il) Transactions with related partles :

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2012 31 March 2018
Transactions during the year ® In lakhs) [® In lakhs)
Revenue from Operations 720.00 720.00
HCC Operalions and Maintenance Limited Subsidiary 720.00 720 00
Expenditure incurred for the Company 183.44 -
Hindustan Conslruction Company Limited Holding Company 100 12 .
HCC Operations and Maintenance Limited Subsidiary 68.78
HCC Concessions Limited Joint Venlure 14 54
Inter corporate deposit taken 7.305.87 2,229.58
Hindustan Construction Company Limited Holding Company 7,305 87 1,404.00
Dhule Palesner Operalions & Maintenance Limiled Subsidiary . 525 58
HCC Concessions Limited Joint Venlure E 300.00
Repayment of Inter corporate deposit received 3,742.41 1,014.71
HCC Operalions and Maintenance Limited Subsidiary 231.00 41.30
Dhule Palesner Operations & Mainlenance Limited Subsidiary 1,067.59 -
HCC Energy Limiled Slep down subsidiary 2,143.82 973 41
HCC Concessions Limited Joinl Venture 300.00 .
Interest converted into intercorporate deposit 15,722.45 14,300.00
Hinduslan Conslruction Company Limiled Holding Company 15,722 .45 14,300.00
Interest expenses on inter corporate deposit 9,229.19 20,327.41
Hindustan Conslruclion Company Limited Holding Company 4,496 29 15,833 28
HCC Energy Limiled Step down subsidiary 2,749 50 4,087 93
Dhule Palesner Operations & Maintenance Limited Subsidiary 996 02 -
HCC Operations and Maintenance Limited Subsidiary 2344 -
HCC Concessions Limited Joint Venture 3308 2206
HCC Real Estate Limiled Fellow Subsidiary 930 86 38414
Interest income on inter corporate deposit given 265.51 611.46
HCC Power Limited Subsidiary - 363 59
HCC Concessions Limited Joinl Venlure 11.13 367
HCC Real Estale Limiled Fellow Subsidiary 254.38 24420
Inter corporate deposit given 818.74 2,587.03
HCC Power Limited Subsidiary 165.00 2,502.03
HCC Concessions Limiled Joint Venlure 65374 -
HCC Real Eslate Limited Fellow Subsidiary . 85.00
inter corporate deposit given received back - 259.00
HCC Concessions Limiled Joint Venlure - 259.00
Director sitting fees - 0.80
Rajas Doshi Independent Director - 040
Anil Singhvi Independent Director - 040
D d equity ir inst inter corporate deposit and interest accrued 155,254.22 -
Hindustan Construction Company Limited Holding Company 155,254 22
Interest expense on corporate guarantee - 0.14
Charosa Wineries Limited Fellow Subsidiary - 014
Finance income on corporate guarantees 95.87 101.36
HCC Operations and Maintenance Limiled Subsidiary 1867 4313
HCC Power Limited Subsidiary 7720 5823

ICD interest written back 41.83 .
Charosa Wineries Limited Fellow subsidiary 4183 -
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b

m

Outstanding as at year end

Interest accrued and due on intercorporate deposit given

HCC Power Limited*
HCC Concessions Limiled
HCC Real Eslale Limited

Interest accrued and due on intercorporate deposit taken

Hindustan Conslruction Company Limiled

HCC Operations and Maintenance Limited

HCC Energy Limited

Dhule Palesner Operations & Mainlenance Limited
HCC Concessions Limited

Charosa Wineries Limited

HCC Real Eslate Limited

Intercorporate deposit taken

Hindustan Construction Company Limiled

HCC Operations and Maintenance Limiled

HCC Energy Limited

Dhule Palesner Operalions & Maintenance Limited
HCC Concessions Limited

HCC Real Eslate Limited

Intercorporate deposit given
HCC Power Limited**

HCC Concessions Limiled
HCC Real Eslate Limiled

Other payables

Hindustan Conslruclion Company Limited

Dhule Palesner Operations & Maintenance Limited
HCC Operalions and Maintenance Limited

HCC Concessions Limited

Advance / deposit given®

Badarpur Faridabad Tollway Limiled
Baharampore Farakka Highway Limited
Farakka Raiganj Highway Limiled

Corporate guarantees glven by the Company
HCC Operations and Mainlenance Limited
HCC Power Limiled

Debt component of compound
HCC Reat Estate Limited

Trade Receivables
HCC Operations and Maintenance Limited
Lavasa Corporalion Limited?

Corporate guarantees given
HCC Operations and Maintenance Limited
HCC Power Limited

* The balances have been provided for during lhe year. Refer nole 22
** The balances have been parlly provided for during lhe year Refer note 22

Loss per share:

Loss computation for basic earnings per share of ¥ 10 each
Loss as per the statement of profil and loss available for equily shareholders
Less: Preference dividend on cumulalive preference shares including distribution tax

Loss afler preference dividend as stated above

Weighted average number of equity shares for earning per share computation

Loss per share - basic and diluted

Subsidiary
Joint Venture
Fellow Subsidiary

Holding Company
Subsidiary

Step down subsidiary
Subsidiary

Joinl Venture

Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Holding Company
Subsidiary

Step down subsidiary
Subsidiary

Joint Venlure

Fellow Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Joint Venlure
Fellow Subsidiary

Holding Company
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Joint Venlure

Subsidiary of Joint Venlure
Subsidiary of Joint Venlure
Subsidiary of Joint Venture

Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
® In lakhs) [® In lakhs)

1,066.22 1,157.78
37489 409.89
46034 500.71
23099 24718
10,145.57 23,651.89
- 15,722 45
86589 844 80
6,596.05 4,830.30
2,68363 1,921.58
- 2062

4183

270.31

32,664.78 167,776.49
- 128,139.70
104.73 335.72
24,12973 26,273.55
8,430 32 9,497 90
. 30000

- 3,229 62
6,763.44 6,331.68
4,461.68 4,296 68

65374 .
1,648.02 2,03500
3,924.44 136.91
024 3969
3,773.49 -

134.49 96 35
1622 087
2042 20.42
2001 2001
025 025

016 0.16
330.81 426.25
112.14 13069
21867 295 56
1.00 1.00

1.00 100
896.41 387.53
88295 37407
1346 1346
20,800.00 20,800.00
8,800.00 8,800.00
12,000 00 12,000 00

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019

(% lakhs) (17,728 99)
(Z lakhs) (17,728.99)
(Nos.) 250,000
) (7.091 60)

31 March 2018
{19,492 05)
{19,492 05)

250,000
(7.796 82)
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27  Financial Instruments

Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and the fair value of fi ial instr by each gory as at 31 March 2019:

(In X lakhs)
Particulars Financial assets / liabilities at Financial assets / Financlal assets/  Total carrying Total fair value

amortised cost liabllities at fair value liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss value through OCI

Assets
Loans 6,346 19 - - 6,346 19 6,346 19
Trade receivables 882 96 - - 882 96 882 96
Cash and cash equivalenls 1445 - . 14.45 14.45
Other financial assels 4,242 68 - - 4,242 68 4,242 68
Liabilities
Borrowings 32,66578 . . 32,665.78 32,665.78
Trade payables 14.24 - - 1424 14.24
Other financial liabilities 29,663 81 . . 29,663 81 29,663 81
The carrying value and the fair value of financial instr by each gory as at 31 March 2018:

{In ¥ lakhs)
Particulars Financial assets / liabilities at Financial assets / Financial assets/  Total carrying Total fair value

amortised cost liabllities at fair value liabilities at fair value
through profit orloss  value through OCI

Assets
Loans 6,331.68 E - 6,33168 6,331 68
Trade receivables 387 53 - - 387 53 387 .53
Cash and cash equivalenls 1371 . - 1371 137
Olher financial assels 1,21858 - . 1,218.50 1,218.58
Liabilities
Borowings 167,777 49 - - 167,777 49 167,777 49
Trade payables 1186 11.66 1186
Olher financial fiabilities 27,293 86 - . 27,293 86 27,293.86

28 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's activilies expose it to a variely of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The Company's focus is lo foresee the unprediciability of financial markels and seek to minimize
potential adverse effects on ils financial performance

i Market risk
Markel risk is the risk (hat lhe fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial inslrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices Markel risk comprises three types of risk: interest rale risk, currency risk
and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Major financial instruments affecled by market risk includes loans and barrowings

@ Interest rate risk
Inlerest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of changes in market interest rales. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in marke!
interest rates relales primarily to Ihe Company's lotal debt abligalions wilh floating interest rates,

Interest rate sensitivity
The Company does not have any floating rate borrowings and consequently the Company is nol exposed lo interesl rate risk

b Foreign currency risk
The Company does nol have any oulstanding balances in foreign currency and consequently the Company is not exposed lo foreign exchange risk Although, the exchange rate between the rupee and foreign
currencies has changed subslantially in recent years, it has nol affected the results of the Company

¢ Equity price risk
The Company's listed and non-lisled equity securities are susceplible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of (he i ilies. The Company r the equity price risk
through diversificalion and by placing limits on individual and tolal equity instruments. Reporls on the equily porifolio are submitted to the Company's senior management on a regular basis. The Company's
Board of Direclors reviews and approves alt equity investment decisions. As at balance date, the Company does not have any exposure in listed securities and consequenlly the Company is nol exposed to
price risk

il Creditrisk
Credit risk refers lo the risk of default on ils obligalion by lhe counterparty resulting in a financial loss The maximum exposure of the financial assets are contributed by trade receivabies, cash and cash
equivalenls and receivable from group companies

a) For olher customers, the Company uses a provision matrix to compule the expecled credil {oss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix lakes inlo account available external and inlernal credit risk
factors such as credit ralings from credit raling agencies, financial condilion, ageing of accounts receivable and the Company's historical experience for customers

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generated from government promoted agencies and others:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(%) (%}
Revenue from government promoted agencies 7937 -
Revenue from others 2063 100 00

100.00 100.00
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The following table gives details in respect of revenues generated from the top and top 5 ct for the year ended:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) {2 lakhs)
Revenue from top cuslomer 2,769 94 720.00
Revenue from top five cuslomers 3,489.94 72000

i Liquidity risk
Liquidily is defined as the risk lhat the Company will not be able lo settle or meet ils obligalions on lime or at a reasonable price. The Company's treasury depariment is responsible for liquidity, funding as well
as selilement management In addition, processes and policies related lo such risks are overseen by senior managemenl. Management monitors the Company's net liquidily position through rolling forecasls on
lhe basis of expecled cash llows

The table below provides details regarding the contraclual malurities of significant financial liabilities:

As at 31 March 2019

(In ¥ lakhs)
Particulars on Contractual Cash flow
0-12 Months 1-3years 3-5 years Above 5 years Totat
Borrowjngs (including current maturilies of long-term 33,850 69 ) . ) 1.00 33,851.69
borrowings)
Trade payables - 1424 . - - 14.24
Interesl accrued 10,507 89 . . - - 10,507.89
Other financial liabililies - 9.841.50 228489 - - 10,169.99
Total 44,356.58 9,955.74 228.49 - 1.00 54,543.81
As at 31 March 2018
Contractual Cash flow
Particul Ond d
ARERArs 0-12 Months 1-3years 3-5 years Above 5 years Total
Borrowlings (including current maturilies of long-term 100,486 58 3.22962 65,247 21 168,963.41
borrowings)
Trade payables - 1186 - 11.86
inlerest accrued 23,833 02 . - 23,833.02
Other financial liabilities - 1,950.70 a4 - - 227491
Total 124,319.60 1,962.568 3,553.83 - 65,247.21 195,083.20

29 Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all olher equity reserves altributable to the equity holders of the Company The Company strives to safeguard
its ability lo conlinue as a going concern so Lhal they can maximise returns for lhe shareholders and benefits for olher stake holders. The aim to maintain an oplimal capilal structure and minimise cost of capital

The Company manages its capital slruclure and makes adjustments in lighl of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To mainlain or adjust lhe capital slruclure, the
Company may return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or adjust the dividend paymenl lo shareholders (if permitted) Consislent with others in the industry, the Company monitors its capital using the
gearing ralio which is net debt divided by lotal capital

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2013
2 lakhs 2 lakhs
Net debts 44,345 14 192,782.72
Tolal capilal employed 37,283.30 (100,242 16)
Net debt to capital employed ratio 1.19 (1.92)

In order to achieve this overall objeclive, lhe Company's capilal management, amongsl other things, aims to ensure lhat it meets financial covenants atlached lo the borrowings that define the capilal structure
requiremenls Breaches in meeting Lhe financial covenants would permit lhe lenders lo immedialely call loans and borrowings

30 Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits’

A Defined benefit oblig - Graluity (unfunded)

The gratuity plan is governed by the Paymenl of Gratuily Acl, 1872 under which an employee who has compleled five years of service is enlitied to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depends on
the member's length of service and salary at retirement age

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
InT lakhs In ¥ lakhs
a) Change in defined benefit obligations
Present value of obligation as at lhe beginning of the year 340 250
Current service cost 042 035
Inlerest expenses 0286 019
Premeasurements - net actuarial (gains)/ losses {0.23) 0.36
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 3.§ 3.40
b) Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 042 035
Net interest on lhe net defined benefil obligations / assets 026 0.19
Total 0.68 0.54
c) Premeasurement (gains)/ losses recognised in OCI
Acluarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 003 (018)
Experience adjustmenis {0.26) 0.54
Total {0.23) 0.36
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d)

e)

kil

32

33

34

35
35.1

Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rale 785%pa 752%pa
Rale of increase of compensation levels B800%pa 800%pa
Expected average remaining working lives of employees 1600 1700
Mortality table Indian assured lives indian assured lives
mortality (2006-08) mortality (2006-08)
ultimale ultimate

The atirition rate varies from 2% to 8% (previous year 2% lo 8%) for various age groups
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in acluarial valuation, lake account of inflalion, seniority, promotion and olher relevant faclors, such as supply and demand in the employment market

Sensilivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:
1% increase

i Discounlrate (052) (0.47)
ii. Salary escalalion rale - over a long-term 062 566
iil. Attrition rate 001 (0.01)

1% decrease

i Discount rate (0.52) 0.57
i Salary escalalion rale - over a long-term 062 (0.48)
iii. Attrition rate 001 001

Sensilivity for significanl actuarial assumplions is computed by varying one acluarial assumplion used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant

Maturity analysls of defined benefit

Within the next 12 months 008 007
Between 2 and 5 years 038 033
Between 6 and 10 years 0.63 0.55
Total expected payments 1.09 0.95
= —

Defined contribution plans
Amount recognised as an expense and included in nole 20, Conlribution to provident and olher funds amounted lo T 2 14 lakhs (31 March 2018 ¥ 1 80 lakhs)

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
In T lakhs In T lakhs

Current/ non-current classification
Gratuity
Current 008 0.07
Non-current 377 333

3.85 3.40
Leave entitlement and d absences (including sick leave)
Current 021 021
Non-currenl 422 427

4.43 4.48

The Company is principally engaged in a single business segment viz “Infrastructure development”. The Company is primarily operaling in India which is considered to be as a single geographical segment
Also, refer nole 27 for informalion on revenue from major customers

The Company has incurred nel loss of ¥ 5,728.76 lakhs during the year ended 31 March 2019 any as at thal date, its current liabililies excesded ils current assets by ¥ 45,754.58 lakhs. The Company is holding
8545% in HCC Concessions Limited (HCL) having various Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) SPVs under its fold. While the Company has incurred losses in currenl year and has accumulaled losses as at 31
Mareh 2019, the underlying projecls are expecled lo achieve adequate profitability on substantial completion. Further BOT SPV's have several claims inthuding favourable arbitralion awards agains ils
customers mainly in respect of cost- overrun arising due to clienl caused delays, termination of contracts and change in scope of work which are under varipus stages of negotiation/discussion with clients or
under arbitration/ litigalion wherein managemenl has been legally advised that it has good case on merils. Therefore, based on cerain estimales like future business plans, growth prospects as well as
considering the contraclual tenability, progress of negolialion/ discussion/ arbilration/ iiligalions and legal advise, ihe management is confident of recovery of lhese ¢laims and therefore views this Company as a
going concem and the financial slatements have been prepared accordingly.

The Company, as at 31 March 2019, has a non-current investment amounting to ¥ 462.04 lakhs (31 March 2018: 461.72 lakhs) and other non-current financial assels ¥ 4,044 44 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥
4,706 58 lakhs) in its subsidiary, HCC Power Limiled (HPL) The Company has also furnished corporale guarantee amounting to 12,000 lakhs (31 March 2018 ¥ 12,000 lakhs} to the lenders of HPL. While this
subsidiary has incurred losses and net-worth has been fully eroded, lhe nel-worth of Lhis subsidiary does not represent is true market value as based on cerlain estimates like fulure business plans, growth
prospects and olher factors, the management believes that Lhe realisable amount of this subsidiary is higher than the carrying value of its non-current investments and non-current financial assels due lo which
lhese are considered as good and recoverable

The Company, as al 31 March 2018, has a non-curren| investment amounting 1o ¥ 85.946.56 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 85,946 56 lakks) in HCC Contessions Limited ('HCL'), a joint venture company having
vanious Buid, Operate and Transfer (BOT) SPVs under its fold. The underlying projects of HOL are expected 1o achieve adeq fitability on substantial completion. The net-worth of this pint venture doss
not represent its true market value 85 the value of the underlying investments | assels, based on valuation report of an independent valuer, & higher. Further BOT SPV's have several claims:mncluding
favourabie arbitralion awards against its cuslomers mainly in respect of cost- overrun arising due 1o chient caused delays, larmination of contracts and change in scope of wark which are under varous stages of
negotiation/discusson with clients or under arbi /i ) has been legaily advised thal It has good case on merits. Therefore, based on certaln estimates ke huiure business plans,
growth P as well as considering the contractual Iy, prog of neg / rbil v ibgations and legal advise; the ] I bel thal the r amount of HCL is
higher than Ihe carrying value of the non-current investments due lo which these are considered as good and recoverable

Recent Accounting Update

Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on 30 March 2019 and il replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019 Ind AS 116 sels
out the principies for the recognition, measuremen!, presentation and disck of feases and req lessees 1o account for all teases under a single on-balance shaet madel similar to the accounling for
finance leases under Ind AS 17, The ludes two ion 1% for lessees ~ leases of low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and shart-tarm leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of
12 moniths or less). At the commencemenl dato of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liabilty lo make lease payments (i.e , the lease liability) and an assel representing the righl 1o use the undetlying asset during
the lease lerm (i.e., the right-of-use assel). Lessees will be required to separalely recognise Lhe interast expense on Lhe lease liability and the deprecialion expense on Lhe right-of-use assel. Lussees will be
also required to remeasure lhe lease liability upon the occurrence of certain evenls (e.9., a change in lhe lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rale used lo
determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amounl of (he remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use assel

Based on management assessment, lhe adoption of Ind AS 116 will not have any material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company.
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35.2 Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Inceme Tax Treatments:

On 30 March 2018, Ministry of Corparate Affair has notifled Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncetainty over Incoms Tax Treatments which is fo be applicd whils performng the doteimination of taxable profit (or loss),
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax crodite and lax rates, when thera s uncerainty over income lax bestments under Ind AS 12, A ding to Ve append need o di ina the probability of
the relevant lax authorily aceepting each tax treatment, o¢ group of tax reatments, that the companies have used or plan to une in their ingome tax fing which has to bo cansidored to compule the most likety
amaunt o the evpecled value of the tax treatment when determining tavable praft (tax loes), tax bases, unused tne losses unueed tax credils anid tax rales,

The standard permits two pessible methods of transiion —

iy Full ive app ~ Under lhis appi 5 ix C will be applied retrospeclively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with ind AS 8 — Accounling Palicies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and

ii) Retrospectively with cumulative eftect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial lication, without adjusti p

The effective date lor adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual perinds beginning on or after 1 April 2019, The Company will adopt the atandard on 1 April 2018 and has decided fo adjust the cumulative effect
in equity on the date of inilial application i.e. 1 April 2019 without adjusting comparalives.
Effective date for ication of these is annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2019,

The Company is ing the above requi of the d and the impact on the financial statements.

This is a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to in our audit report
of even date
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Independent Auditor's Report T +91 22 6626 2600

F +91 22 6626 2601
To the Members of HCC Infrastructure Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of HCC Infrastructure Company
Limited (‘the Holding Company'), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as ‘the Group’) and its joint ventures, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2019, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on
the other financial information of the subsidiaries and joint ventures, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including Indian Accounting Standards ('ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the
consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial position) of the Group and its joint ventures as at 31
March 2019, and its consolidated loss (consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income), its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

- We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in paragraph 19 of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 33.1 in the consolidated financial statements which indicate that the Group
incurred a net loss of ¥3,552.25 lakhs during the financial year ended 31 March 2019, and as of that
date, the Group’s accumulated losses amounts to 182,814.06 lakhs and the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by ¥11,124.65 lakhs. The ability of the Group to continue as a going concern
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is significantly dependent on the reasons as stated in the aforesaid note. These conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in the aforesaid note, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, based on the
factors mentioned in the aforesaid note, management is of the view that the going concern basis of
accounting is appropriate. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Matters

5. We draw attention to Note 33.2 to the consolidated financial statements, regarding Group’s non-current
investment in HCC Concessions Limited (‘HCON'), a joint venture company of the Company,
aggregating 13,723 lakhs, as at 31 March 2019. The consolidated net worth of the aforesaid joint
venture has been substantially eroded; however, based on certain factors, including joint venture’s
future business plans, growth prospects, valuation report from an independent valuer and expected
outcome of the negotiation/ discussion/ arbitration/ litigations and legal advice obtained in respect of
certain claims, as described in the said note, management is of the view that the realizable amount is
higher than the carrying value of the investments due to which these are considered as good and
recoverable. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

6. We draw attention to Note 33.3 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements on following
emphasis of matter included in the audit report on the financial statements of HCC Operations &
Maintenance Limited (HOML), a subsidiary of the Holding Company, issued by an independent firm of
Chartered Accountants, vide their report dated 7 May 2019, on a matter which is relevant to our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, and reproduced by us as under:

Refer Note No 39 to the financial statements, the Company had executed a debenture Sale
Purchase agreement (Agreement) on 29 September 2017 with the third party to purchase 102
and 15 non-convertible debentures of Lavasa Corporation Limited held by them, issued in 2013
maturing on 30 Sep 2020. As per the terms of the Agreement, the Company will purchase these
debentures for an aggregate consideration of 213,800 lakhs plus Interest @ 10.27% per
annum. During the current financial year (PY Nil), the company has given 1,800 lakhs to this
third party against purchase commitment. During the year, Lavasa Corporation Limited has
gone under Insolvency Resolution Proceeding before the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai. Our opinion
is not modified due to above matter.

7. We draw attention to Note 33.4 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements on following
emphasis of matter included in the audit report on the financial statements of Badarpur Faridabad
Tollway Limited (BFTL), a joint venture of the Holding Company, issued by an independent firm of
Chartered Accountants, vide their report dated 3 May 2019, on a matter which is relevant to our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, and reproduced by us as under:

Attention is drawn to Notes 18 and 31 to the financial statements, Canara Bank has vide letter
dated 31 October 2018 has recalled entire amount of financial assistance extended to the
Company. As per the cited letter, Bank has mentioned an amount of £90,296.00 lakhs as total
dues outstanding as on 31 October 2018. Whereas per books of accounts of the Company,
total outstanding dues to lenders as at 31 March 2019 are ¥61,704.21 lakhs. Pending
reconciliation of outstanding dues to the lenders, difference amount has been disclosed as
contingent liability. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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8. We draw attention to Note 33.5 and 33.6 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements on
following emphasis of matters included in the audit report on the financial statements of Baharampore
Farakka Highways Limited (BFHL), a joint venture of the Holding Company, issued by an independent
firm of Chartered Accountants, vide their report dated 3 May 2019, on matters which are relevant to
our opinion on the consclidated financial statements of the Group, and reproduced by us as under:

Chartered Accountants

a) Note 33 of notes to accounts, National Highways Authority of India had served “Intention to

~—

Issue Termination Notice" vide letter dated 24 August 2017 and the Company refuted all the
alleged defaults. The Independent Engineer has recommended the Authority to withdraw
intention to issue termination notice on 5 February 2019. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

Note 32 of Notes to accounts, the Company has received claims of 66,111.37 lakhs from
Hindustan Construction Company, its ultimate holding company and the EPC contractor for the
project. As per policy adopted by the Company, these claims will be recognised only after
approval and receipt of the same from National Highways Authority of India. In views of this
claim has been disclosed as a contingent liability. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

We draw attention to Note 33.6, 33.7 and 33.8 of the accompanying consolidated financial
statements on following emphasis of matters included in the audit report on the financial statements
of Raiganj Dalkhola Highways Limited (RDHL), a joint venture of the Holding Company, issued by
an independent firm of Chartered Accountants, vide their report dated 3 May 2019, on matters
which are relevant to our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, and
reproduced by us as under:

a) Note 7 to the notes to accounts, National Highways Authority of india (NHAI) has served notice

b)

of termination of contract to the Company vide letter dated 31 March 2017 due to delay in re-
start of work at project. For the reasons mentioned in the note, as the Company is confident of
full recovery of its claims of 36,800.00 lakhs made before the arbitration for wrong full
termination of the project. In view of this the cost incurred by the Company till 31 March, 2017
appearing under Receivable from NHAI amounting to 217,742.46 lakhs is considered fully
recoverable by the management. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Note 6 to the notes to accounts, Company has given interest free mobilization advance of
¥9,000.00 lakhs to Hindustan Construction Company Limited. It's ultimate holding company, in
its capacity as sub-contractor for carrying out the project. The said amount is outstanding for
more than 3 years due to delay and subsequent wrongful termination of the project by NHAI.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Note 25 (i) to the notes to accounts, the Company has received claims of 259,180.00 lakhs
from Hindustan Construction Company, its ultimate holding Company and the EPC contractor
for the project. As per policy adopted by the Company these claims will be recognized only after
approval and receipt of the same from National Highways Authority of India. In views of this
claim has been disclosed as a contingent liability. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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10. We draw attention to Note33.6 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements on following
emphasis of matter included in the audit report on the financial statements of Farakka Raiganj
Highways Limited (FRHL), a joint venture of the Holding Company, issued by an independent firm
of Chartered Accountants, vide their report dated 3 May 2019, on a matter which is relevant to our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, and reproduced by us as under:

Note 33 to the notes to accounts, the Company has received claims of ¥71,514.43 lakhs from
Hindustan Construction Company, its ultimate holding Company and the EPC contractor for
the project. As per policy adopted by the Company these claims will be recognized only after
approval and receipt of the same from National Highways Authority of India. In views of this
claim has been disclosed as a contingent liability. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report thereon

11. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other information
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is
obtained at the date of this auditor’s report.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial position), consolidated profit or loss
(consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its joint ventures in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act. The respective Board of Directors/management of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
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13. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

15. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resuilting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the holding company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

16. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Other Matters

17.We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of ¥ 31,187.76 lakhs and net assets of ¥ 3,835.16 lakhs as at 31 March 2019, total revenues of
¥ 6,272.16 lakhs and net cash outflows amounting to ¥ 568.86 lakhs for the year ended on that date,
as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also
include the Group’s share of net loss (including other comprehensive income) of ¥ 14,478.85 lakhs for
the year ended 31 March 2018, as considered in these consolidated financial statements, in respect of
five joint ventures, whose financial statements has not been audited by us. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and joint ventures, and our report in terms of sub-
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and joint
ventures, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
work done by, and the reports of the other auditors.

18. The consoclidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018 were audited
by the predecessor auditor, Messrs K.S. Aiyar & Co., who have expressed an unmodified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements vide their audit report dated 2 May 2018.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

19. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors, referred to in paragraph 19 on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and
joint ventures, we report that the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and joint venture companies,
covered under the Act, have not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the year.

20. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries
and joint ventures, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

Chartered Accountants

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors;

the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

the matters described in paragraph 4 on the Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern
paragraph and paragraphs 5 to 12 of the Emphasis of Matters paragraph, in our opinion, may have
an adverse effect on the functioning of the Holding Company, BFTL, RDHL, BFHL and FRHL, joint
ventures of the Holding Company and DPOML, HPL and HOML, subsidiaries of the Holding
Company;
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f)

9)

h)

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the other
statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and joint venture companies covered under the Act,
none of the directors of the Group companies, covered under the Act, are disqualified as at 31
March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
Company; its subsidiary companies and joint venture company covered under the Act and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure I'; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and joint ventures:

i. the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its joint ventures, as detailed in Note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements;

ii. provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements, as required under the

applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts, as detailed in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements;

iii. there were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint venture, covered
under the Act, during the year ended 31 March 2019; and

iv. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes

were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are no
relevant to these consolidated financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Vi) -'D’-f""i>

Vijay D. Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 117961

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019

Chartered Accountanis
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of HCC Infrastructure
Company Limited, on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of HCC Infrastructure Company
Limited (the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as ‘the Group’) and joint ventures, as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019, we have
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ("IFCoFR") of the Holding Company, its
four subsidiary companies and six joint venture companies, which are companies covered under the
Act, as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its four subsidiary companies and six joint
venture companies, which are companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s business, including adherence
to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company, its four subsidiary
companies and six joint venture companies, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company, its four
subsidiary companies and six joint venture companies as aforesaid.
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Annexure | (Contd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that
IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on IFCoFR of the
two subsidiary companies and five joint venture companies, the Holding Company, its four subsidiary
companies and six joint venture companies, which are companies covered under the Act, have in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such controls were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Holding Company, its four subsidiary companies and one joint venture
company as aforesaid, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

9. We did not audit the IFCoFR in so far as it relates to two subsidiary companies, which are companies
covered under the Act, whose financial statements (before eliminating inter-company transactions)
reflect total assets of Z 31,187.76 lakhs and net assets of ¥ 3,835.16 lakhs as at 31 March 2019, total
revenues (before eliminating inter-company transactions) of ¥ 6,272.16 lakhs and net cash outflows
amounting to ¥ 568.86 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss
(including other comprehensive income) of ¥ 14,478.85 lakhs (before eliminating inter-company
transactions) for the year ended 31 March 2019, in respect of five joint venture companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, whose IFCoFR have not been audited by us. The IFCoFR in so far
as it relates to such subsidiary companies and joint venture companies have been audited by other
auditors whose report have been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy
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and operating effectiveness of the IFCoFR for the Holding Company, its four subsidiary companies
and six joint venture companies, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates
to such two subsidiary companies and five joint venture companies is based solely on the reports of
the auditors of such companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to
our reliance on the work done by and on the reports of the other auditors.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

- \
\/\)Nﬂ' 'D““M'j
Vijay D. Jain

Partner
Membership No.: 117961

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019
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As at As at
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
{® lakhs) (¥ lakhs)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 4.62 6.22
Investment accounted for using equity method 4 13,722.54 29,281.35
Financial assets
Loans 5 2,301.76 2,035.00
Other financial assets 6 51.08 283.20
Other non current assets 7 55.64 -
Income-tax assets (net) 8 359.60 511.96
Total non-current assets 16,495.24 32,117.73
Current assets
Financial assets
i) Investments 4 65.19 338.70
iiy Trade receivables 9 2,506.38 480.27
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 73.69 946.12
iv) Other financial asset 6 4,212.10 541.09
Other current assets 7 345.69 267.03
Total current assets 7,203.05 2,573.21
TOTAL ASSETS 23,698.29 34,690.84
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity share capital 11 25.00 25.00
Other equity (33,355.17) (154,888.28)
Total Equity (33,330.17) (154,863.28)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 12 28,289.11 99,505.59
Provisions 13 42.26 40.10
Total non-current liabilities 28,331.37 99,545.69
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 12 - 63,193.48
Trade payables 14
i) Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises - -
ii) Total outstanding dues other than (i) above 9,040.43 628.52
Other financial liabilities 15 16,934.47 23,931.99
Other current liabilities 16 2,546.77 1,949.73
Provisions 13 1.93 1.81
Current tax liabilities (net) 17 173.48 303.00
Total current liabilities 28,697.09 90,008.53
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 23,698.29 34,690.94

Notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N / N500013

Ny * DTob—

Vijay D. Jain

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Uil

Kishore Venkata Ramana Repaka Amit Uplenchiwar

Partner Director Director
- DIN : 06862760

Membership No.: 117961 DIN : 07402969

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
[ lakhs) {® lakhs)
Income from operations 18 7,003.21 7,264.55
Other income 19 1,086,78 278.94
Total Income 8,089.99 7,543.49
Expenses

Purchase of stock in trade 20 - 18.24

Employee benefits expense 21 431.48 427.35

Finance costs 22 9,435.99 20,641.22

Depreciation 23 1.61 1.99

Other expenses 24 2,268,023 3,383.44
Total expenses 12,137.11 24,472.24
Loss before share of profit/(loss) of joint venture, exceptional item and tax (4,047.12) {16,928.75)

Share of loss of joint ventures (15,561.80) (2,258.21)

Exceptional item 25 (13,800.00) -
Tax expense
Current income tax

Current tax 363.23 878.51

Tax pertaining to earlier years 26.83 -
Loss for the year (A) (33,798.98) (20,065.45)
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

- Gain/(loss) on fair value of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation 2.26 4.64

- Income tax effect on above - -

- Share of OCI of investments accounted for using equity method 2.99 0.90
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) 5.25 5.54
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (A+B) {33,793.73) {20,059.91)
Loss per equity share of each having face value of ¥ 10 each 28

Basic and diluted (in ) (0.14) (0.08)
Notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
This is the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our audit report of even
date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Fim Registration No. 001076N / N500013 =

~7T 1 N
NAY SR o ’LLW
\) P y
Vijay D. Jain Kishore Venkata Ramana Repaka Upledchwar
Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 117961 DIN : 07402969

DIN : 06862760

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019




HCC Infrastructure Company Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(T lakhs) ¥ lakhs)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES )
Loss before tax (17,847.12) (16,928.75)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1.61 1.99
Share of Loss in Joint Venture - -
Loss Allowance on Assets 41.87
Amortisation of Corporate Guarantee 2.1 0.14
Finance costs 8,496.95 19,871.51
Unwinding of discounted value of long term inter corporate deposit 930.86 384.14
Interest on delayed statutory payments & Other Borrowing Cost 6.06 a
Interest received {276.60} (270.88)
Compensation in lieu of termination (2,769.94) -
Interest received for Compensation in lieu of termination (749.03) -
Interest on intercorporate deposit written back (41.83) -
Fair valuation of Investment (12.77) (2.31)
Profit on sale of investment (3.12) (5.37)
Operating profit before working capital changes {12,220.93) 3,050.47
Adji its for changes in working capital:
(Increase) in trade receivables (2,026.44) (80.61)
(Increase) in other financial assets (18.38) (321,08)
(Increase) in other non-current assels (57.75) -
(Increase) in other current assets (78.66) (124.66)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 8,411.91 (237.86)
Increase in other financial liabilities 4,132.94 1,493.90
Increase in provisions 4.54 827.83
Increase in other current liabilities 597.04 853.41
Cash (used in)/ generated from operations {1,255.73) 5,461.39
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (757.27) (1,666.25)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities (A) (2,013.01) 3,795.15
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets (0.01) (0.59)
Payment for acquisition of share in Joint Venture - -
(Purchase)/sale of investments in mutual funds (net) 289.39 (331.02)
(Investment)/redemption in fixed deposit (net) - 592,78
Intercorporate deposits given during the year (653.74) -
Intercorporate deposits adjusted/given/repaid during the year 386.98 174.00
Interest received 561.65 270.88
Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 584.27 706.05
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Term Loan taken during lhe year 3,773.49 -
Term Loan repaid during the year (2,407.19) {1,807.00)
Inter corporate deposit taken during the year 27,353.53 16,714.00
Inter corporate deposit repaid during the year (4,699.47) (710.00)
Interest Converted into loan (19,808.66) (18,428,04)
Interest paid (3.655.39) -
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (C) 556.31 {4,231.04)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) (872.43) 270.16
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 946.12 675.97
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 10) 73.70 946.12
Components of cash and cash equivalents considered only for the purpose of cash flow
Cash and cash equivalents 0.04 0.04
In bank current accounts 73.65 946.08
Bal. as per of cash flows 73.68 946.13
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HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019

Notes:

The cash flow statemenl has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows. Effeclive 1 April
2017, the Company adopted lhe amendment to ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. (Refer note 12.4)

Significant non cash movements during the year excludes:

(i} Conversion of interest payable on intercorporate deposit taken from Hindustan Construction Company Limited into intercorporate deposil amounting to ¥ 15,722.45

(ii) Intercorporate deposit from Hindustan Construction Company Limited and interest thereon converted into deemed capital contribution from Holding Company
amounting to

(iii) Amount payable and receivable from HCC Real Estate Limited, a fellow subsidiary were netted off against each other amounting to ¥ 4,430.79 lakhs.

Notes 1 to 37 form an integral parl of the consolidated financial statements

This is the consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our audit report of
even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Fimn Registration No. 001076N / N500013
ot (|, Ko
iy = P N0

Vijay D. Jain Kishore Venkata Ramana Repaka Uplenchwar
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 117961 DIN : 07402969 DIN : 06862760

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019




HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
p Pdatad of Ch

A) Equity share capital (Refer note 11)

in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

[Particulars Number Tlakhs

Equity shares of T 10 each issued, subscnbed and paid

up

As at 31 March 2017 250,000 25.00

Issue of equity shares - -

As at 31 March 2018 250,000 25.00

lssue of equity shares - =

As at 31 March 2019 250,000 25.00

B) Otiror oquity (¥ lakhs)

Reserves and surplus Equity
Deeme.d ca.pitzl s':::‘ee;p:el:;::" Capna'I‘:regs:rNe . z through Other Total equi.ty attributable
contribution . to equity holders
allotment comprehensive
income

As at 1 April 2017 2,249.40 1.00 604.00 {137,681.77) - {134,827.37)
Loss for the year - - - (20,065.45) - (20,065.45)
Alloiment during the year - {1.00) - - - (1.00)
Olher Comprehensive Income for lhe year - - - 4.64 0.90 5.54

As at 31 March 2018 2,24%.40 - 604.00 {157,742.58) 0.90 {154,888.28)
Loss far the year - - - (33,798.98) - {33,798.96)
Allotment during the year - - - - - -
Capital coniribution 155,326.84 - - - - 155,326,684
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - 226 299 525

As at 31 March 2019 157,576.24 - 604.00 {191,539.30) 3.89 (33,355.17)

MNature and purpose of reserves

i. D

d capital

The holding company when lransfers benefit to the Company in form of financial guarantee or interes! free loan, a deemed capital contribution account is crealed. This will be derecagnised
on disposal of control in the Company. Additions during the year represents intercorporate deposits received from Hindustan Canstruction Company Limited which has been classified as

deemed capital contribution during the current year.

ii. Shares money p

This pertains lo sum to be adjusied against shares consideralion in lieu of issue of 10,000 preference shares of T 10 each.

iii. Capital reserve

Capital reserve was created on account of merger with an entity in the earlier years

iv. Retained eamings

Retained eamings represent profits / losses thal the Company has eamed / incurred till dale as reduced by dividends or other distribulion paid by to the equity shareholders

Notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of the cor

d financial

This is the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our audit report of even

date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N / N500013

Jiyes D IR —

Partner
Membership No,: 117961

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

M
Kishore Venkata Ramana Repaka

Director
DIN : 07402969

Place: Mumbai

Date: 07 May 2019

Direclor
DIN : 06862760




HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial its for the year ended 31 March 2019

2.4
(i)

(i)

a)

(b}

()

(d)

Corporate information

HCC Infrastructure Company Limited (the Company) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under lhe provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. Itis a
100% subsidiary of Hindustan Conslruclion Company Limited (HCC). Shares of Its holding company are listed on two stock exchanges in India. The registered office of lhe
Company having (CIN : U45400MH2010PLC210944) is located at Hincon House, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083

The financial statements comprises lhe financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (lhe Company and its subsidiaries referred to as the "Group™) and its joint
arrangements.

The Group is engaged in the business of providing all types of infrastructure activities whelher on its own or through subsidiaries, joinlly controlled enlily or SPV's

These consolidated financial statements ("the financial statements") of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution of the
Board of Directors on 7 May 2019.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies

(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain financial assets and liabilities and share based payments which
have been measured at fair value, on an accrual basis of accounting.

The Company's financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s funclional currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000),
except when olherwise indicated.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Group as per the guidance set out in Schedule Il
lo the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities of the Group covers the duration of the project/ contracl/ service including the defect liability period, wherever applicable, and
extends uplo the realisation of receivables (including retention monies) within the credit period normally applicable to the respective project.

In case of certain companies of the Group, operating cycle for the business aclivities, based on the nature of producis and time belween the acquisilion of assets for processing
and their realization in cash or cash equivalents have been ascertained as twelve months for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabililies

Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which lhe Group has control. The Group controls an entity when lhe Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns lhrough its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity, Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
conlrol is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date the control ceases

The acquisition method of accounting is used lo account for business combination by the Group.

The Group combines the separate financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, contingent liability, equity,
income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transaclions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary and practicable to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated slatement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and balance sheel, respectively

The consolidated financial statements have been presented to the extent possible, in ihe same manner as Parent Company’s standalone financial statements.

Joint arrangements
Under Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements, investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures. The classification depends on the conlractual
rights and obligations of each investor, rather lhan the legal structure of the joint arrangement

Joint ventures
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after inilially being recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet,

Equity Method
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the Group's share of olher comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income ("OCI"), Dividends received or
receivable from joint ventures are recognised as a reduclion in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise furlher losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary and practicable to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

The carrying amount of lhe equily accounted inveslments are tested for impairment in accordance with lhe policy described in note (viii)

Change in ownership interests

The Group treals transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transaclions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-contralling interests or reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of lhe adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit and loss. The fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequent
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venlure or financial asset. In addition, any amounls previously recognised in OCI in respect of that enlity are reclassified
to profit or loss as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in OC| are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate




HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(e)

0

{iif)

(iv)

The financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. if a member of the Group uses accounling
policies other than those adopted in the financial statements for like transactions and events in simiiar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member's
separate financial slatements in preparing the financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies, wherever necessary and practicable.

Notes to lhe financial statements represent notes involving items which are considered material and are accordingly disclosed. Materiality for the purpose is assessed in relation to
lhe informalion contained in the financial statements. Further, additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial slatements of the subsidiary and/or a parent having no
bearing on the true and fair view of the financial statements has not been disclosed in these financial statements

Accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the recognilion and measurement principles of Ind AS, requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabililies and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the results of operation
during the reported period. Although these eslimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates
which are recognised in the period in which they are determined

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, thal have a significant risk of causing a material adjusiment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Exisling circumstances and assumplions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising lhat are beyond the conlrol of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

Valuation of investment in/ loans to st ies and assc
The Company performs valuation for ils investments in equity/preference shares of subsidiaries / associates for assessing whether there is any impairment in the fair value. When
lhe fair value of investments in subsidiaries / associates cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow model. Similar assessment is carried for exposure of the nature of loans and interest receivable thereon. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as expected earnings in future years, liquidily risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of these
investments

Deferred tax assets

In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assels including Minimum Alternate Tax, management considers whelher some portion or all of the deferred income tax assets
will not be realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers lhe scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in
making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are
deductible, management believes that the Company will realise the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realisable,
however, could be reduced in the near term, if estimates of future taxable income during lhe carry forward period are reduced.

Defined benefit plans

The cost and present value of the gratuity obligation and compensated absences are determined using actuarial valualions. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, altrition rate and moriality rates
Due lo the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumplions. All assumplions are
reviewed at each reporting date

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid lo transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on lhe presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place eilher:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or lne most advantageous market must be accessible by lhe Group

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participanls would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming lhat market participants
act in their economic best interest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a markel participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and besl use

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising lhe use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoled prices included within Levet 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

For assets and liabilities thal are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest Ievel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) al the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group's
accounling policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in lhe valuation computation to contracts
and other relevant documents

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liabilily with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable

Property, plant and equipment (Tangible assets)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including attributable inlerest and finance costs, if any, till lhe date of acquisition/ installalion of the assets less
accurnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure relating 1o Properly, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable thal
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to lhe Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged
to the Stalement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on disposal or when retired
from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss




HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(vi)

{vii)

(a)

(b)

(viif)

(a)

(b)

Investment Property
Invesiment property is property held either to eam rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment properly is measured at cost

Depreciation/ Amortisation
Depreciation/ amortisation is provided:
i, In respect of buildings and sheds, on the written down value basis considering the useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il to lhe Act

ii. In respect of furniture and fixtures, office equipment, compulers, plant and machinery, heavy vehicles, light vehicles and speed boat on straight line basis at rates determined on
the basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il to lhe Act, on a pro-rata basis. However, certain class of plant and machinery used in construction projects are depreciated on a
straight line basis considering the useful life determined based an the technical evaluation and the management's experience of use of the assets, that is a period of three o
twelve years, as against the period of nine to twenty years as prescribed in Schedule |l to lhe Act

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation carried out by the management's expert, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The asset’s useful
lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The change in estimated useful lives is a change in an accounling estimate and is applied
prospectively. An asset's cammying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any conlract that gives rise lo a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity insirument of another entity

Financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL), are recognised inilially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly atlributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in lhe market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date thal the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interesl rate (“EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising
on these assels are recognised in the Slatement of Profit and Loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCl is carried at FVPL

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Group applies the expected credit loss ("ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk
exposures

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on \rade receivables, Simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL al each reporting dale, right from its initial recognition

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL
is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit isk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL ECL is the difference between after contractual cash fiows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the enlity expects to receive (i.e. afler all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR

Lifetime ECL are the expecled credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events that are possibie wilhin 12 months after the reporting date. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is
recognised as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss

De-recognition of Financial Assets

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when lhe obligation specified in lhe contract is discharged, cancelied or expired. When an exisling financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an exisling liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as de-recagnition of
the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Stalement of Profit and Loss

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR melhod. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaclion costs) and the settiement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over lhe term of the borrowings in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Amortised cost is calculated by laking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosls that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
as finance cosls in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Where the Group issues optionally convertible debentures, Lhe fair value of the liability portion of such debentures is determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible debenture. This value is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until exlinguished on conversion or redemption of the debentures. The remainder of the
proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the instrument. This is recognised and included in shareholders' equity {net of income tax) and are not subsequently re-measured.

Where he terms of a financial liability is re-negotiated and the Group issues equily instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or
loss is recognised in Lhe Slatement of Profit and Loss; measured as a difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and lhe fair value of equity instrument issued

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligalion specified in the contract is discharged cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substanlially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabilily are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is lreated as de-recognition of
the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounls is recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in lhe Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offsgl the recognised
amounts and there is an inlention lo setile on a net basis to realise the assets and seltle the liabilities simultaneously
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(%)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(a)

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees' state insurance, labour welfare fund and superannualion scheme are charged as an expense
based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. Group’s provident fund contribution, in respect of certain
employees of the Company and its Indian subsidiaries is made to a government administered fund, and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss The above
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group has no further obligations beyond the monthly contributions

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand or short-lerm deposits and investment with an original maturity of three month or less
and investment which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the inlernal reporting provided to lhe chief operating decision maker

Revenue and expenses directly altributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment, Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each reporting segment are
allocated on the basis of associated revenue of the segment and manpower efforts. All other expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed as
unallocable expenses, Assets and liabilities that are direclly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment and all other assels and liabilities
are disclosed as unallocable. Property, plant and equipment that could be used interchangeably among segments are not allocaled to reportable segments.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Also, the EIR amortisation is included in finance cosls

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition, construction or preduction of a qualifying asset which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are added to the cost
of such asset to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. All olher borrowing costs are expensed in lhe Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they occur

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assel for its intended use or sale are complete. Capitalisation of borrowing
cost is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted unless that period is a necessary part of the process for the construclion of the asset.

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition

Effective from 1 April 2018, the group adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracls with Customers” using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that
were not compleled as of 1 April 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method , the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The following is a
summary of new and/or revised significant accounting policies related to revenue recognition.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those
services. Revenue from services is accounted net of taxes.

Contract modificalions are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price, The accounting for modifications of
contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether lhe pricing is at ithe standalone selling price. Services added that are not
distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are
priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if nol priced at the standalone seiling price.

The impact on account of applying the erstwhile Ind AS 18 Revenue instead of Ind AS 115 Revenue from contract wilh cuslomers on the financials statements of the Company
for the year ended and as at 31 March 2019 is insignificant

{b) Project management consultancy and fees

Revenue from project management consultancy fees is recognised on accrual basis, as per terms of the agreement with the customer

(c) Accounting for Claims

Claims are accounted as income in the period of receipt of order of arbitration award or acceptance by client or evidence of acceptance received. Interest awarded, being in the
nature of additional compensalion under the terms of the contract, is accounted as other operating revenue on receipt of favourable arbitration award.

(d) Dividend income

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend

(e) Finance and Other income

Finance income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference lo the principal outstanding and the applicable EIR. Other income is accounted for on accrual basis. Where the
receipt of income is uncertain, it is accounted for on receipl basis

(f} Interest in joint arrangements

As per Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements, investment in Joinl Arrangement is classified as either Joint Operation or Joint Venture. The classification depends on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor rather than legal structure of the Joint Arrangement. The Company classifies its Joint Arrangements as Joint Ventures

The Company recognises its direct right to assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of Joint Operations and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses. These have been incorporated in the financial statements under the appropriate headings.

(xiv) Income tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assels and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxalion authority. Current lax assets and lax liabilities are offset where the entily has a legally enforceable right to offsel and intends either to settie on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT") credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is probable that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period

{xv) Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Stalement of Profit and Loss, except for properties previously revalued with
the revaluation taken to OCL. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation

When the Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If lhe amount of impairment loss subsequently
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after lhe impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through the Statement of Profit and Loss
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(xvi)

{xvii)

{xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

Trade receivables
A receivable is classified as a ‘'trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold or services rendered in the normal course of business. Trade
receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequenily measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less provision for impairment

Trade payables

A payable is classified as a ‘trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or services received in the normal course of business. These
amounts represenl liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and are usually
settled as per the payment terms stated in the contract. Trade and olher payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within the normal operating cycle
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for lhe period attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equily shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presenled is adjusted for events, such
as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potenlial equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to lhe equity shareholders increased by the after tax amount of dividend and
interest recognised in the period in respect lhe dilutive potential ordinary shares and is adjusted for any other changes in income or expense that would result from the conversion
of the dilutive potential ordinary shares and weighted average number of equily shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potenlial equity shares. The dilutive potential equily shares are adjusted for the proceeds
receivable had the equily shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of lhe outstanding equily shares)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable thal an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation, Provisions (excluding gratuity and
compensated absences) are determined based on management's estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. In case lhe time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects lhe risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, lhe increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised because il cannot
be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required lo settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses

Provisions for restructuring are recognised by the Company when it has developed a detailed formal plan for restrucluring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that
the Company will carry out the restructuring by starting 1o implement the plan or announcing its main features 1o those affected by it

Where there are a number of similar obligalions, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and lhe risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense

The measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not
associated with the ongoing activities of the Company.

Exceptional Items
When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary aclivilies are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of
the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such material items are disclosed separalely as exceptional items
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3 Property, plant and equipment

[ lakhs)

Particulars Computers O_fflce Fur.mture an Total
equipment fixtures

Gross carrying value (Deemed cost)
Balance as at 1 April 2017 15.16 1.54 1.44 18.14
Additions 1.24 - - 1.24
Disposals = - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 16.40 1.54 1.44 19.38
Additions - - - -
Disposals b » = -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 16.40 1.54 1.44 19.38
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2017 8.82 1.49 0.86 11.17
Depreciation for the year 1.80 0.05 0.14 1.99
Disposals - = - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 10.62 1.54 1.00 13.16
Depreciation for the year 1.46 - 0.14 1.60
Disposals - s - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 12.08 1.54 1.14 14.76
Net carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2018 6.22
Balance as at 31 March 2019 4.62




HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

4

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(T lakhs) (T lakhs)
Investments
Non-current investments
tment accounted for using th ity method
In Joint venture
in equity shares 57,348.02 57,348.02
In compulsory convertible preference shares 28,598.54 28,598.54
Less: Share of profit / loss from joint venture accounted under equity method (72,224.02) (56,665.21)
Total non current investments (A) 13,722.54 29,281.35
Current Investments
ment in | Fun
Fair value through profit or loss
Unquoted
Investments in mutual fund
Essel Liquid Fund Growth plan : 72.422 Units (31 March 2018:11,889,70 149 226,12
Units)
Reliance Mutual Fund -Direct Growth Plan 1,396.349 units (31 March 2018 63.70 112,58
2,622 .45 Units}
Total current investments (B) 65.19 338.70
Total investments (A+B) 13,787.73 29,620.04
Non current
(i} Markel value of inveslmenls - unquoted - -
(i) Carrying value of investmenls - unquoted 13,722.54 29,281.35
(iii) Investments carried at deemed cosl 13,722.54 29,281.35
(iv) Impairment of invesiments . >
Current
(i) Market value of investments - unguoted 65.19 338.70
(i) Carrying value of investments - unquoted 6519 338,70
(iii) Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 65.19 338.70
Financial assets
Non current
Loans
Inter corporate deposit (Refer note 27) 2,301.76 2,035.00
Total non-current loans 2,301.76 2,035.00

Break-up of security detalls

Loans considered good - Secured - -
Loans considered good - Unsecured 2,301.76 2,035.00
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk -
Loans - credit impaired - -

Total 2,301.76 2,035.00
Loss allowance z 2
Total loans 2,301.76 2,035.00

Note - There are no loan due from any director or any officer of the group, either severally or jointly with any olher person, or from any firms or private companies in
which any director is a partner or a member

As at As at
Name of company Interest rate Repayment 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(X lakhs) (¥ lakhs)
HCC Concessions Limiled 11.00% Repayable on demand 653.74 -
HCC Real Estate Limited* 12.50% Repayable on demand 1,648.02 2,035.00
2,301.76 2,035.00

* The above receivables are secured by subservient charge on {and of HRL (Thane) Real Estate Limited, the fair value of land being T 12,000 lakhs

Other financlal assets
Non-current

Securily deposit 003 003
Olher receivable from related parties (Refer note 27) 7147 3599
Less: Loss allowance (20.42) -
Interest receivable on Inter corporate deposits (Refer note 27) - 247.18
Commitment and advances against purchase of debentures 13,800 00 -
Less: Loss allowance (13,800.00) -
Total non-current flnancial assets (A) 51.08 283.20
Current

Compensation in lieu of termination {Refer note below) 3,518.96 -
Interest receivable on Inter corporale deposits (Refer note 27) 691.32 500.71
Other receivables from related party (Refer note 27) 1.82 40.38
Receivables from other 7.99 -
Less: Loss allowance {7.99) -
Total current financial assets (B) 4,212,10 541.09
Total other financial assets {(A+B) 4,263.18 824.29
Note:

The compensalion receivable is being charged and hypolhecated by the company as first pari passu security interest in favour of Debenture Trustee for debentures issued by Lavasa
Corporation Limited
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As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(T lakhs) (T lakhs)
7 Other assets

Non-current assets
Financial guarantees (Refer note 27) 55.64 -
Total non current assets 55.64 -

Other current asset

Financial guarantees (Refer note 27} 14.86 -

Balance with government aulhorities 281.561 260.00
Prepaid expenses 3.26 2.96
Other advances 46.06 4.07
Total Other current assets 345.69 267.03
Total other assets 401.33 267.03

Income tax assats (net)
i. The following table provides the details of income tax assets and llabilities:

Income tax assets 369.60 511.96
Less: income tax liabilty - -
Total income tax assets (net) 359.60 511.96

ii. The gross movement in the current tax asset/ (liabllity):

Net current income tax assets/ (liabilitles} at the beginning 511.96 218.65
Add: Tax deducled at source 237.70 1,171.82
Less: Current income laxes (390.06) {878.51)
Net non-current income tax assets/ (liabilities) at the end 359.60 511.96

iii. Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:

Current income taxes (represents prior year losses) 330.06 878,51
Deferred income taxes” - -
Income tax expenses/ (income) (net) 390.06 878.15=1_

* The Company has not recognised deferred tax assets, in view of absence of reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realised.

Trade receivables
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Related parties (Refer note 27) 2,519.84 480.27
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (13.46) -
Total trade receivables 2,506.38 480.27

Trade receivables considered good - Secured - -

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 2,506.38 480,27
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - .
Trade receivables - credit impaired 13.46 -
Total 2,519.84 480.27
Loss allowance (13.48) -
Total trade recelvables 2,506.38 480.27

Note - There are no receivables due from any director or any officer of the Company, either severally or jointly with any other person, or from any firms or private companies in which
any director is a partner or a member.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 0.04 004
Balances with banks
In current accounts 73.65 946.08

Total cash and cash equivalents 73.69 946.12
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As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
[ lakhs) (T lakhs)
11 Equity share capital
Authorised share capital
14,980,000 (31 March 2018: 14,990,000) equity shares of 10 each 1,499.00 1,499.00
10,000 (31 March 2018: 10,000) 0.1% Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 210 each 1.00 1.00
Total authorised share capital 1,500.00 1,500.00
Equity shares issued, subscribed and paid up share capital:
250,000 (31 March 2018: 250,000) equity shares of T10 each 25,00 25.00
Total issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 25.00 25.00
a) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
. As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
P. I
articulars No. of shares T In lakhs No. of shares T In lakhs
At the beginning of the year 250,000 25.00 250,000 25.00
Issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 250,000 25.00 250,000 25.00
b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares of the Company and shares held by Holding company:

. As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Particulars No. of shares %holding No. of shares %holding
Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid
Promoter
Hindustan Construction Company Limited 250,000 100% 250,000 100%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the

above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

c) Details of allotment of shares for consideration other than cash, allotments of bonus shares and shares bought back during past five years:

(i) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash - Nil

(ii) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - Nil

(iiiy Aggregate number and class of shares bought back - Nil

d) Rights and restriction attached to equity shareholders:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. During the year ended
31 March, 2019, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders was Z Nil (31 March 2018: ¥ Nil). In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

e) Non cumulative redeemable preference shares

i) Reconciliation of 0.1% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

No. of shares T In lakhs No. of shares T In lakhs
At the beginning of the year 10,000 1.00 . -
Issued during the year - . 10,000 1.00
At the end of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

ii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of 0.1% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of the Company:

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

No. of shares

%holding

No. of shares

%holding

HCC Real Estate Limited

10.000

100%

10,000

100%

iii) Conversion terms, rights and restrictions attached to non-cumulative redeemable preference shares:
i) The preference shares shall carry a dividend of 0,1% per annum. These are non cumulative and non convertible.
ii) Redemption of preference shares would be done as decided by the Board of Directors of the Company at any time after the period of 6 (six) months and prior to the

period of 20 (twenty) years from the date of issue of preference shares.
iii) The preference shares shall have no voting rights.

iv) The Preference Shares will not be listed on any Stock Exchanges unless required by any extant regulations.
v) In the event of liquidation of the Company before conversion/ redemption of 0.1% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares, the holders of 0.1% Non-cumulative
redeemable preference shares will have priority over equity shares in the payment of dividend and repayment of capital.
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As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
{  lakhs) ( ¥ lakhs)
12 Borrowings (non-current)
A) Secured
Term loans
From banks
Rupee Loan from Yes Bank Limited 36,923.89 35,557 58
Total 36,923.89 35,557.58
Less: Current maturity of long term debl (Refer note 15) (8,635.78) {4.528.83)
Total borrowings from bank (A) 28338.11 31 iaza.vs
Term loans from bank
Term Loan | (TL-1) 10,800.00 11,700.00
Carrying fixed interest rate of 11.25% p.a, repayable in 20 structured quarterly installments commencing from March 2017
and ending on December 2022 (Refer note 12.1)
Term Loan I} (TL-Ii) 7,800.00 8,000.00
Carrying floaling inlerest rate ranging from 10.65% to 11.25% p.a, repayable in 20 structured quarterly installments
commencing from November 2018 and ending on August 2023 (Refer note 12.1)
Term Loan Il (TL-Ii1) 5,000.,00 5,000.00
Carrying floaling interest rate 10.75% p.a, repayable in 20 structured quarterly installmenls commencing from April 2019 and
ending on January 2024 (Refer note 12.1)
Term Loan [V (TL-IV) 2,400.00 2,400.00
Carrying floating inlerest rate 10.75% p.a, repayabie in 20 structured quarterly instaliments commencing from June 2019 and
ending on March 2024 (Refer note 12.1)
Carrying fioating interest rate ranging from 10.75% to 12.25% p.a, repayable in 16 structured quartely installments 5,964 48 7,271.66
commencing from third year of the loan (Refer note 12 2)
Carrying floating interest rate ranging from 10.75% to 11.25% p.a, repayable in 20 structured quarterly installments 3,773.49 -
commencing from February 2019 and ending on December 2022 (Refer note 12.3)
Carrying interest rate of 12.5% p.a. repayable in 5 years commencing from 1 January 2014 in equal quarterly installments 1,185,92 1,185.92
(Refer note 12 4)
36,923.89 35,557.58
12.1  Security created in respect of above loans
(i)  First Pari passu charge on all assets of the Borrower
(ii)  Extension of Pledge of Shares of HCC Infrastructure Company Limited (HICL) in HCC Concessions Limited already pledged with Yes Bank Limited for the HCC
Infrastructure Company Limited.
(iiiy  Unconditional and imevocable guarantee from HCC infrastructure Company Limited
(iv)  Unconditional and ievocable Guarantee from Hindustan Construction Company Limited
(v)  Extension of the second pari passu charge over entire assets of HCC Infrastructure Company Limiled
(vi) Pledge over 30% equity shares of HCC Power Limited held by HCC Infrastructure Company Limited in favour of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as Securily Trustee
for TL-I, TL-II, TL-III and TL-IV sanctioned by lender lo HCC Power Limited, to be reduced to 15% on repayment of 50% of the sanctioned facililies
(vii)  Unconditional and irrevocable guaraniee from HCC Real Estate Limited (Upto 40% of term loan) for TL-IV
12.2 Term loans are repayable in 16 consecutive quarterly instalments commencing from the third year of the loan
Extension of the Charge on the pledge of shares of HCC Infrastruclure Company Limited (HICL) in HCC Concessions Ltd already charged to the bank at HCC
Infrastructure Company Limited.Extension of second pari passu charge over entire assets of HICL(Including movable and immovable fixed assets(If any) and current
assets), excluding investments, both present and future provided for lhe bank facility at HICL for Loan amount of Z 58,00,00,000
Corporate guarantee of HCC Infrastructure Company Limited in a form and manner acceplable to the bank
First Pari Passu Charge on all assets of Borrower
12.3  Secured by Uncondilional and Irrevocable Corporate Guarantee of HCC Real Estate Limited & Undertaking from HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
The Company has enlered into a novation agreement with Charosa Wineries Limiled and Yes Bank Limited pursuant to the Resolution Plan of Charosa Wineries
Limited whereby the loan from Yes Bank Ltd. amounting to ¥ 3,773.49 lakhs borrowed by Charosa Wineries Limited alongwith its rights and Liabilities under the Loan
Agreement will be transferred to Dhule Palesner Operalions & Maintenance Limited
12.4 Rupee Loan are availed from the bank and carry interest @ 12.5% p.a (Base rale plus spread of 2.5%).The loans are repayable in 5 years with moratorium of 24

months followed by structured equal quarterly repayment wilh 20%, 30% and 50% repayment in 3rd, 4th, and 5th year respectively, commencing from 1 January 2014
The loans are secured by way of :

a) Residual charge over identified receivables of Hindustan Construction Company Limited of amounting to ¥ 626.16 crore

b) Irrevocable and unconditional corporate guarantee of ¥ 200 crore given by Hindustan Conslruction Company Limited for securing the loan along with applicable
interest

c) Irrevocable and unconditional undertaking given by Hindustan Construction Company Limited and HCC Infrastructure Company Limited to the bank with respect to
liquidity events conditions ,conditions related to accelerated repayments

d) Pledge by the Company of 688,637 equity shares and 67,133,349 - 0,001% Compuisory Converlible Cumulalive Preference shares held by it in HCC Concessions
Limited, in favour of the bank for securing the loan of ¥ 200 crore along with applicable interest

e) Irrevocable and unconditional corporate guarantee of Charosa Wineries Limited for securing the loan of Z 200 crore along with applicable interest

f) Second charge on entire assets of the Company (including moveable and immovable, fixed assets and currenl assets), excluding investments, hoth preseat gnd

future < \nf, rt-.,é‘
—
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B) Unsecured
Inter corporate deposit (refer notes below and 27)
Subtotal (B)

Note :

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
R lakhs) { lakhs)
68,475.83
68,475.83

During the year, ICD's payable to Hindustan Construction Company Limited has been transferred to deemed equity contribution from holding Company

[Refer note (i) under Statement of Changes in Equity].

The ICD's payable to HCC Real Estate Limited is adjusted against the receivables from the same party (Refer Note 5).

Inter corporate deposit from related parties

Name of Company

Rate of interest

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Hindustan Construction Company Limited 12.50% 65,246.22
HCC Real Estate Limited Interest free - 3.229.62
Total - 68,475.84
C) Liability component of financial instruments [Refer note 11(e) and 27]

Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 1.00 1.00

10,000 (31 March 2018 : 10,000) 0.1% Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 10
each
Subtotal (C) 1.00 1.00
Total non current borrowings ( A+ B + C) 28,289.11 99,505.59
Current
Unsecured
From Related Parties
Inter Corporate deposit * (Refer Note 27) - 63,193.48
Total current borrowings = 63,193.48
*Inter corporate deposits taken from related parties at an effective interest rate of 12.5% p.a. repayable on demand.
Net debt reconciliation
As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Rin lakhs R in lakhs X in lakhs

Cash and cash equivalents 73.69 946.12 675.96
Liquid investments 65.19 338.70 -
Current borrowings (1,318.84) (75,220.90) (61,208.13)
Non-current borrowings (36,924.89) (104,034.41) (105,828.93)
Net debt (38,104.85) (177,970.51) (166,361.10)

. Cash and cash Liquid Investments Non-current Current
Particulars i X R

equivalents borrowings borrowings Total

Net debt as at 1 April 2017 675.96 - (105,828.93) (61,208.13) (166,361.10)
Cash flows 270.16 336.39 . (2,714.00) (2,107.45)
Repayment of borrowings - - 1,794.52 - 1,794.52
Interest expense - (15,426.83) (15,426.83)
Interest paid - - - 4,128.04 4,128.04
Fair value adjustments 2.31 - - 2.31
Net debt as at 31 March 2018 946.12 338.70 (104,034.41) (75,220.92) (177,970.51)
Cash flows (872.43) (276.63) (1,366.31) 15,237.96 12,722.59
Interest expense - - - (4,529.38) (4,529.38)
Fair value adjustments - 3.12 - - 3.12
Borrowings converted into deemed equity - - 68,475.83 63,193.48 131,669.31
Net debt as at 31 March 2019 73.69 65.19 (36,924.89) (1,318.84) (38,104.85)
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As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
X lakhs) (¥ lakhs)
13 Provisions
Non Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Compensated absences (Refer note 32) 24.06 23.42
- Gratuity (Refer Note 32) 18.20 16.68
Total non current provisions (A) 42.26 40.10
Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Compensated absences (Refer note 32) 1.66 1.55
- Gratuity (Refer Note 32) 0.27 0.26
Total current provisions (B) 1.93 1.81
Total provision (A+B) 44.19 41.91
14 Trade payables
Current
Trade payables : micro and small enterprises (Refer note below) - -
Trade payables : others 1,240.43 628,52
Other payables 7,800.00 -
Total trade payables 9,040.43 628.52
Note :

The group has not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/
payable as required under the said Act have been on the basis of information available with the group.

15 Other financial liabilities

Current

Current maturities of long-term debts (Refer note 12) 8,635.78 4,528.83
Interest accrued and due on

- Inter corporate deposits - 16,055.21
- Term loans 983.17 501.04
Interest accrued but not due on term loans 335.67 -
Security deposit 190.00 -
Payables to related party (Refer note 27) 702.08 819.86
Due to employees 52.70 30.06
Other payables 6,035.07 1,996.99
Total other current financial liabilities 16,934.47 23,931.99

16 Other current liabilities

Statutory dues 823.05 102.76
Advance from customers (Refer note 27) 1,723.72 1,846.97
Total other current liabilities 2,546.77 1,949.73

17 Current tax liabilities (net)
Provisions for tax (net of advance tax) 303.00

303.00
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18 Income from operations

19

20

21

22

23

24

Sale of material

Operation and maintenance fees (Refer note 27)

Other operating income : compensation in lieu of termination
Total revenue from operations

Other income
Interest income
-on inter corporate deposit (Refer note 27)
-on claim
-on fixed deposit
-on income tax refund
Interest on intercorporate deposit written back (Refer note 27)
Net gain/loss on sale of investments
Gain on fair value of investments
Miscellaneous income
Total other income

Purchase of stock in trade
Purchase of stock in trade
Total purchase of stock in trade

Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident funds and other funds [Refer note 32 (b)]
Staff welfare expenses
Total employee benefit expenses

Finance costs
Interest on
- term loans
- inter corporate deposits (Refer note 27)
- on delayed payment of statutory dues
Other borrowing costs
-unwinding of discounted value of long term inter corporate deposit (Refer note
27)
-amortisation of corporate guarantee
-others
Total finance cost

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3)
Total depreciation

Other expenses

Travelling

Director sitting fees (Refer note 27)

Postage, telephone and fax

Rates & taxes

Payment to auditors

Legal, professional and consuitancy charges
Security expenses

Insurance

Car hire charges

Repairs and maintenance

Loss allowances on other receivables
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer note below)
Miscellaneous expenses

Total other expenses

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(X lakhs) [ lakhs)

- 30.56
4,233.27 7.233.99
2,769.94 -
7,003.21 7,264.55

265.51 261.73
749.03 -
2.84 9.16
8.25 -
41.83 -
3.12 5.37
12,77 2.31
3.43 0.37
1,086.78 278.94
- 18.24
- 18.24
378.74 384.79
24,74 26.23
28.00 16.33
431.48 427.35
3,967.58 4,400.30
4,529.38 15,855.34
0.53 .
930.86 384.14
2.11 0.14
5.563 1.30
9,435.99 20,641.22
1.61 1.99
1.61 1.99
3.14 10.75
3.39 5.01
8.44 7.88
14.71 12.92
9.72 4.14
43.41 78.86
355.83 309.19
6.35 8.00
216.19 235.21
1,531.09 2,660.46
41,87 -
- 6.04
33.89 44.98
2*268.03 3,383.44
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(a)
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Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 26.28 6.04
Amount spent during the year on

(i) on construction / acquisition of an asset -
(i} on purposes other than (i) above - 6.04
Amount unspent during the year 26.28

Other expenses include Rs Nil (31 March 2018: Rs.6.04 lakhs) spent towards various schemes of corporate social responsibility as prescribed under
section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Exceptional ltems

Provision against commitment given towards purchase of debentures (Refer note below) 12,000.00

Provision against advance for debentures 1,800.00 -
Total exceptional expenses 13,800.00 -
Note :

Pursuant to Debenture Sale Purchase Agreement dated 29 September 2017, between HCC Operations & Maintenance Limited (subsidiary company)
with debenture holders of Lavasa Corporation Limited for purchase of debentures of Lavasa Corporation Limited, HCC Infrastructure Company Limited
("the Company") being an affiliate to the agreement has assumed the balance liability of commitment given by its subsidiary, After assuming the
liability, since the worth of the underlying asset -Lavasa Debentures is Nil since Lavasa has gone under Insolvency Resolution Proceeding, the same
has been provided during the year and shown under exceptional items.
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()
(i}
(i)

Contingent liabllitles and commitmants
(A) Conlingent llabililias As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(€ lakha) (T lakhs)
Corporate guaranless given on behall of group companies 13,800.00 -
Service Tax and MVAT litigation pending with department 88.02 4 50
Income tax liability that may arise in respecl of which the Company is in appeals 142 80 -
{iv)  Counter indemnilies given lo banks in respect of contracls exaculed by subsidiaries and joint venlures 36,923.89

v)

Provident fund

Based on the judgement by the Honourable Supreme Courl dated 28 February 2019, past provident fund liability, is not determinable at present, in view of uncertainly on lhe applicability of the judgement e

the Company wilh respect o liming and the components of its structure. In ab of further clarificalion, the Company has been advised to await furlher developments in lhis matter to
assess the implications on ils financial slalements, if any

(B) Capital commitments

27

The Company has given a comfort leller to lhe Asset Care & Reconstruction Enterprises Limiled (ACRE) on behalf of its ullimate holding company — Hinduslan Construction Company Limited where lhe
Company has agreed to pay Lhe third party if lhere is any shortfall in payments of HCC's liability. Total HCC's liability payable to ACRE amaunts lo ¥ 12,283 64 lakhs The Company has also agreed lo pay
the shartfall amount from proceeds of arbilration of its project in downstream joint ventures - Farakka Raiganj Highways Limited and Raiganj Dalkhola Highways Limited

Dlsclosura In accordance with Ind AS 24 Related Party Transaclions

Names of related parties and nature of relationship

A) Holding Company
Hindustan Conslruction Company Limited (HCC)
Company's holding as at (%) *

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Country of
incorporation

B) Joint Venlure®*

HCC Concessions Limited India 8545% 8545%

C) Subsidlary of Joint Venture

Narmada Bridge Tollway Ltd India 8545% 85.45%

Badarpur Faridabad Tollway Ltd India 85 45% 85.45%
pore-Farakka Highways Ltd India 85 45% 64.09%

Farakka-Raiganj Highways Ltd India 8545% 64.09%

Raiganj-Dalkhola Highways Ltd india 76 91% 76 91%

D) Fellow ies (with whom tr have taken place during the year)

HCC Real Estate Limited India

Steiner India Limited India - .

Charosa Wineries Limited (upto 6 February 2019) India

Lavasa Corporalion Limited {upto 30 Juy 2018) India

B) Key Management Personnsl

Mr Venkata Ramana Kishore Repaka
Mr. Amit Uplenchwar

Mr. Aditya Pratap Jain

Mr. Arun Vishnu Karambelkar

Mr. Shripad Gailonde

Mr_ Praveen Sood

Mr Mahesh Sitaram Gaikwad
Mr.Rajas Doshi

Mr_ Anil Singhvi

Mr. Chandrahas Vinod Zaveri
Mr. Manish Kumar Khanna

* including through subsidiary companies

Director (w e f. 27 April 2018)

Diractor (w.e f. 31 August 2018}

Addilional Direclor {(w.e.f, 27 March 2019)
Director {uplo 28 April 2018}

Direclor {upto 31 August 2018)

Direclor {upto 31 March 2019)

Direclor

Independent Direclor {upto @ Seplember 2017)
Independent Direclor (upto 16 October 2017)
Independent Direclor

Independent Direclor

AA Subsidiary as per the Act; however, classified as a Joinl Venlure under Ind AS
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1) Transactions with related parties :

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Transactions during tho year {¥In lakhs) {TIn lakhs)
Operation & Maintenance Income 4,233.27 7,233.99
Baharampors-Farakka Highway Limiled 2,056.65 5,181.48
Farakka Raiganj Highway Limited 2,176.62 2,052 51
Expenditure incurred for the Company 114.66 B
Hindustan Construclion Company Limiled 100.12 -
HCC Concessions Limited 14 .54 -
Sale of goods - 30.56
Hindustan Conslruclion Company Limiled - 30 56
Sale of Sarvice - 85.61
Hinduslan Construction Company Limited - 8561
Oparation & Maintenance Expensa - 969.21
Hindustan Construction Company Limited - 969 .31
Financlal Income 265.51 261.73
HCC Concessions Limited 11.13 367
HCC Real Eslate Limited 254.38 258.06
Deemed aquity investment against inter corporate deposlit and interest accrued 155,254.22 -
Hindustan Conslruction Company Limited 165,254 22
Deemed equily investment towards corporate guarantee 72.61
HCC Real Estate Limited 7261
Inter corporate deposit Interest writlen back 41.83 :
Charosa Wineries Limited 4183
Interast expensas on Inter corporate deposit 5,460.23 16,239.48
Hindustan Conslruclion Company Limited 4,496 29 15,833 28
HCC Concessions Limited 3308 2206
HCC Real Estate Limited 930 86 384.14
Interast convarted into Inter corporale deposit 15,722.45 14,300.00
Hindustan Construclion Company Limited 15,722 45 14,300 00
Finance cost on Carporate Guarantes taken 2.1 014
HCC Real Estate Limited 21 .
Charosa Wineries Limited - 0.14
Dirgctor Sitting Fees 339 5.01
Rajas Doshi . 0.40
Anil Singhvi - 0.40
Chandrahas Zaveri 201 21
Manish Khanna 138 211
Inter corporale deposit taken 7,305.87 -
Hindustan Conslruction Company Limited 7,305 87
Repayment of Inter corporate deposit received 300.00 -
HCC Concessions Limited 300.00
Advance given 1.81 -
HCC Concessions Limited 181
Security Deposit taken during the year 190.00 -

Steiner India Limited 190.00
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Outstanding as at year end

Vendor Account/outstanding for other services
Hindustan Conslruction Company Limiled

HCC Concessions Limited

Baharampore-Farakka Highway Limiled

Ad r ived from C S
Hindustan Construction Company Limiled

Trade Receivable

Lavasa Corporation Limited*

Badarpur Faridabad Tollway Limited
Baharampore-Farakka Highway Limited
Farakka Raiganj Highway Limiled

Interest payable on Inter corporate deposit
Hindustan Conslruclion Company Limited
HCC Concessions Limited

HCC Real Estate Limited

Charosa Wineries Limited

Other raceivables from related party
Badarpur Faridabad Tollway Limited**
Baharampore Farakka Highway Limited®
HCC Concessions Limited

Farakka Raigan] Highway Limited**
Raiganj Dalkhola Highways Limited

Inter corporate deposit Given
HCC Concessions Limited
HCC Real Estate Limited

Interest recelvable on subordinate loans / Inter corporate deposit
HCC Concessions Limited
HCC Real estate Limited

Financial Guarantee Asset
HCC Real estate Limited

Inter corporate deposit - Taken{Current)
Hinduslan Construction Company Limiled
HCC Concessions Limited

Security Deposit taken
Steiner India Limited

Inter corporate deposit - Taken{Non-Current)
Hindustan Conalruction Company Limited
HCC Real Eslale Limiled

Director Feas payable

Chandrahas Zaveri

Manish Khanna

Debt C. of C d Fi ial Instruments

HCC Real Estate Limited

* The balances have been provided for during the year
** The balances have been partly provided for during the year.

28  Loss per share

A Loss computation for basic earnings per share of ¥ 10 each

Loss as per the statement of profit and loss i for equity sharehold (Z lakhs)
B Less: Preference dividend on cumulalive preference shares including distribution tax

Loss afler prefarence dividend as stated above (% lakhs)
C Weighted average number of equity shares for earning per share compulation (Nos )
D. Loss per share - basic and dituted )

29  Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments by category

The carrying value and the fair value of financial instruments by each category as at 31 March 2019:

Particulars Financial assets / Financial assets / Financial assets/ Total carrying
liabil at tised  liabilitios at fair value  labilities al fair value value
cost through profit or loss through OCI

Assats
Investmenls

Investment in Mutual Fund - 6519 - 6519
Loans 2,301.76 - 2,30176
Trade receivables 2,506.38 - . 2,506.38
Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances 7369 - . 7369
Olher financial assets 4,263 19 - . 4,26319
Llabllitles
Sstr)rtz\)mngs(lncludmg current malurilies of Long term 36,924 89 ) . 36,924 89
Trade payables 9,040.43 - . 9,040.43

Olher financial liabilities 8,298 69 - - 8,298.69

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(T In lakhs) (¥ In lakhs)
702.08 819.86
511.50 646 00
16.22 204
17436 171.82
1,723.72 1,846.97
172372 1,846.97
2,519,84 480.27
1346 1346
62 12 62.12
404 06 250 21
2,040 20 154.48
16,055.21
15,722.45
20 62
270 31
4183
73.29 76.37
2076 20.48
025 025
181 -
5044 55.64
003 -
2,301.76 2,035.00
653.74 B
1,648 02 2,035.00
691.32 74789
460 33 500,71
23099 24718
70.50 .
7050
- 63,193.48
- 62,893 48
300 00
190.00
190.00 -
- 68,475.83
65,246 22
3,229.62
215 -
1.16
099
1.00 1.00
1.00 100
Year ended Year anded

31 March 2019
(33,798.98)

(33,798.98)
250,000.00
(0.14)

{In ¥ lakhs)
Total fair value

65.19
230176
2,506 38

7369
4,26319

36.924 89

9.04043
8,298 69

31 March 2018
(20,065 45)
(20,065 45)

250,000 00
(0 08)
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The carrying value and the fair value of flnancial instruments by each calegory as at 31 March 2018:

Particulars

Financlal assets /

Financial assets /

Assels
Investment
Invesiment in Mutual Funds
Loans
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances
Olher financial assets

Liabllities

Bomowings({Including current malurities of Long term
debls)

Trade payables

Other financial liabililies

F i risk bjecti and polici

potenlial adverse eflecls on its financial performance

Market risk

at
cost

2,03500
480 27
946.12
824.28

167,227 90

628 52
19,403 16

Nl at fair value
through profit or loss

338,70

(In T lakhs)
Financial assels/ Total carrying Total fair value
liabilities at fair value value
through OCI
338 70 33870
2,035.00 2,03500
480 27 48027
946.12 946 12
824 28 824.28
- 167,227 90 167,227 90
- 62852 628,52
19,403 16 19,403 16

Jl
The Company's activilies expose it to a variely of financial risks: markel risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markels and seek to minimize

Markel risk is the risk lhat the fair value of fulura cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices Markel risk comprises three types of risk: inlerest rate risk, currency
risk and olher price risk, such as equity price risk. Major financial inslruments affecled by market risk includes loans and borrawings

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will llucluate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's expasure to the risk of changes in

market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's total debt

Interest rate sensitivity
The following tabie d the

loa ly p

Y y
before tax is affected through the impacl on floating rale borrowings, as follows:

increase in basis points
Effect on loss before tax, increase by

Decrease in basis points
Elfect on loss before tax, decrease by

with floating interest rates,

31 March 2019
T in lakhs
50 basis poinls
(151 34)

50 basis points
151.34

change in interest rates on thal porlion of loans and borrowings affecled. With all other variables held constant, the Company's loss

31 March 2018
Tin lakhs
50 basis points

(165.46)

50 basis poinls

16546

The assumed movement in basia points for the interesl rale sensilivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a signilicanlly higher volalility than in prior years

Foreign currancy risk

The Company daes nat have any oulslanding balances in forsign currency and consequenlly the Company is not exposed to foreign exchange risk

Equity price risk

The C: y's listed and

listed equity ities are pli

to market price risk arising from uncertainlies about future values of the investment securilies, The Company manages the equity price

risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments, Reports an the equity portfolia are submitled to the Company's senior management on a regular basis. The
Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions. As al balance date, the Company does not have any exposure in listed securities and consequently the Company is not

expased to price risk
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligalion by lhe counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The

equivalents and receivable from group companies

Liquidity risk

of the i

ial assets are conlributed by lrade receivables, cash and cash

Liquidity is defined as the risk thal the Company will not be abls lo settle or meet its obligalions on time or at a reasonable price The Company's lreasury departmenl is responsible for liquidity, funding as
well as setllement management. In addilion, processes and policies related lo such risks are overseen by senior management Management monilors lhe Company's net liquidily position through rolling

forecasls on the basis of expected cash llows

The table below provides details regarding the contraclual malurities of significant financial liabiliies:

As at 31 March 2019

Particulars

Borrowings (including current maturilies of long-term
borrowings)

Trade payables

Other linancial liabililies

Total

As at 31 March 2018

Particulars

Borrowings (including current maturities of long-term
borrowings)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Total

(¥ lakhs)
On d d Contractual Cash flow
0-12 Months 1-3 yoara 3-5 yaars Above 5 yoars Tatal
5,459.41 5,940.10 25,524 37 . 1.00 36,924.89
- 9,040.43 - 9,040.43
417.24 7.881.45 - - - 8,298.69
5 876.65 22,861.98 25,524.37 - 1.00 54,264.01
On d " Contractual Cash flow
0-12 Montha 1-3 years 3.5 yoars Above 5 yoars Total
64,379 40 3,34292 33,808 37 450.00 65,247 22 167,227.90
- 628 52 - 628.52
16.236.34 3.166.81 - . 2 19,403.15
B80,615.74 7.138.25 33.808.37 450.00 55i24?.!3 187,259.57
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a)

b)

€)

d)

o)

Capital managamant

For the purpose of lhe Company's capital managemenl, capital includes issued equity capilal and all olher equity reserves atlribulable to the equity holders of the Company. The Company stiives to
saleguard ils abilily lo conlinue as a going concern sa hat they can maximise returns for he shareholders and benefits for other stake holders The aim to maintain an oplimal capital struclure and minimise
cost of capilal

The Company manages its capilal slructure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic condilions and the requirements of the financial covenants To maintain or adjust the capital struclure,
the Company may relurn capital to shareholders, issue new shares or adjust the dividend payment to shareholders (il permitted). Consistenl with others in the induslry, the Campany monitors its capital
using the gearing ratio which is net debt divided by lotal capital

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
¥lakhs X lakhs
Net debt (38,104 85) (177,970 51)
Total capital employed {33,330.17) (154,863 28)
Total debt to capital employaed ratio !..!.2 1.15

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital managemenl, amongst olher things, aims to ensure lhat it meels financial covenants altached lo ihe bomowings that define the capital
slruclure requiremenls. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to immediately call loans and borrowings

Discl o relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benafits’

Delined banefit obligations - Gratuity {unfundad)
The graluity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 under which an employse who has complsted five years of service is enlilled to specific benefits. The level of benelils provided depends
on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age,

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
X lakhs ¥ lakhs

Changs in defined banefit obligations
Presenl value of obligation as at he beginning of the year 16 94 2282
Current service cost 494 506
Interest expenses 133 1.65
Losses on setllement . 1.01
Bensefits paid (2 48) {0.27)
Liability transferred out - {6.69)
Remeasurements - net actuarial (gains)/ losses {2.26) (4.64)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 18.47 16.94
E. gnisad in the Sf of Profit and Loss
Currenl service cost 494 506
Net interesl on the net defined benefil abligalions / assels 133 165
Losses on selllement s 101
Total 6.27 7.72
Remeasurament (gains)/ losses recognised in OCI|
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumplions o1 020
Experience adjustments {2 37) {4.84)

Total (2.28) (4.64)

Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate adopted by HICL

Discount rate 720%pa 720%pa
Rate of increase of compensalion levels 6.00% p.a B00%pa
Expected average remaining working lives of employees 16.00 17.00
Mortality table Indian assured lives Indian assured lives
mortality (2006-08) moitality (2006-08)
ullimate ultimate

The altrilion rate varies from 2% to 8% (previous year 2% to 8%) for various age groups
The eslimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valualion, take accounl of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevanl faclors, such as supply and demand in the employment markal

Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:

Sensitivity analysis for HICL
1% increase

i. Discount rate (0.52) {0.47)

ii. Salary escalation rate - over a long-term 062 566

iii Alirition rate 0.01 (0.01)

1% decroase

i. Discount rate (0.52) 057

ii. Salary escalalion rate - over a long-lerm 0.62 (0 48)

ii. Attrition rale 001 001
rgilivi fe L

Assumptions -Discount rate

Sensitivity Level

Impact on dsfined benefit obligation +1 in % increase (197) (1.81)

Impacl on delined bensfit obligalion -in % decrease 241 222

Assumplions -Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level

Impact on delined bensfit obligalion +1 in % increase 238 219
Impact on defined benelit obligalion -1 in % decrease (1.98) (1.83)
Sensitivity for signilicant actuarial assumplions is computed by varying ane acluarial lion used for the valuation of lhe defined benefit obligation, keeping all other acluarial assumptions conslant

Maturity analysis of definad benefit obligation

Within lhe next 12 months 027 026
Between 2 and 5 years 233 2,50
Between 6 and 10 years 4.47 3.99
Totat expected payments 7.07 6.75

Defined contribution plans
Amount recognised as an expense and included in note 21, Conlribution to providenl and olher funds amounted to T 24 74 lakhs (31 March 2018 % 26 23 lakhs)
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33.2

333

33.4

33.5

32.6

337

3.8

34

3441

Currant/ non-currant classification

Gratuity

Current 027 026

Non-current 18 20 16.68
18.47 16.94

Leave entillement and d ab (including sick leave)

Current 166 155

Non-current 24 08 2342
25.72 24.97

The Company has incurred nel loss of ¥ 3,552.25 lakhs during the year ended 31 March 2019 and as at that date, its current liabilities exceeded ils current assets by ¥ 11,124.65 lakhs The Company is
holding 8545% in HCC Concessions Limiled (HCL) having various Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) SPVs under its fold, While lhe Company has incuired losses in current year and has accumulated
losses as at 31 March 2019, the underlying projects are expecled ta achieve adequale profitability on subatantial completion Further BOT SPV's have several claims including favorable arbitralion awards
against its customers mainly in respecl of cost- overrun arising due to client caused delays, lermination of conlracts and change in scope of work which are under various stages of negatiation/discussion
with clients or under arbitralion/ litigalion wherein management has been legally advised that it has good case on merits. Therefore, based on certain estimales like future business plans, growth prospects
as well as considering the contractual tenability, progress of negolialion/ discussion/ arbilration/ litigations and legal advise, lhe management is confident of recovery of these claims and therelore views this
Company as a going concern and the financial statements have been prepared accordingly

The Group, as al 31 March 2019, has a non-current invesiment amounting to # 137 23 crore (31 March 2018: 292 81 crore) in HCC Concessions Limited ('HCL'), a joint venlure company of HCC
Infrastruciure Company Limited ('HICL') (8545% holding), a whally owned subsidiary, having various Build, Operate and Transfer {BOT) SPVs under its fold While HICL has incurred losses and
consolidaled net-worlh as at 31 March 2019 has been substanlially eroded, the underlying projects are expected to achieve adequale profitability on substantial complelion. The net-warth of this subsidiary
does not represent its true market value as the value of the underlying invesimenls / assets, based on valualion report of an independent valuer, is higher. Further BOT SPV's have several claims including
favorable arbitration awards against ils customers mainly in respecl of cost- overrun arising due to client caused delays, termination of contracls and change in scope of work which are under various stages
of negotiation/discussion with clients or under arbitration/ litigation wherein management has been legally advised that it has good case on merits. Therefore, based on certain estimates like future business
plans, growth praspects as well as considering the conlraclual tenability, progress of negalialion/ discussion/ arbitration/ liligalions and legal advise, the management believes that the realizable amount of
HCL is higher Ihan the carrying value of the non-current investments due lo which these are considered as good and recoverable

The Company has executed a debenlure Sale Purchase agreement (Agreement) on 29th September 2017 wilh a the third party to purchase 102 and 15 non-converlible debentures of Lavasa Corporation
Limited held by them, issued in 2013 maluring on 30th Sep 2020 As per the terms of the Agreement, lhe Company will purchase these debentures for an aggregate consideration of Rs 138 Cr plus
Inlerest @ 10.27% per annum. During the current financial year (PY Nil), the company has given Z 18 crores to this third party againsl purchase commitment

Badarpur Faridabad Tollway Limited ('BFTL') has received a recall nolice from Lenders letler dated 31 October 2018 demanding repaymenl of enlire loan outstanding amounting to Z 710 crore. BFTL has
reverted fo lhe nolice and has requested lhe lenders to reconsider its action of issuing Recall Notice and withdraw il immediately, pending lhe arbitration proceedings with NHAI for termination dues
Subsequenlly BFTL has received Letter dated 10 April 2019 demanding outslanding dues along with revised interest amounting to 902 96 crore as on 31 October 2018 (computed after reversal of
waivers) As per BFTL baoks of accounts, the lotal oustanding dues lo lenders as at 31 March 2019 stands at Z 617.04 crore Pending recongiliation of outstanding dues to the lenders, difference has been
disclosed as contingent liability

On 24 August 2017, NHAI had issued an 'Intenlion to Issue Terminalion Notice' to Baharampore Farakka Highways Limited {BFHL), a joint venture of lhe HCL. BFHL has refuled all the alleged defaults and
refuted NHAL's intention to lerminate as invalid. The Independent Engineer has recommended the Aulhority to wilthdraw intention to issue termination nolice on 5 February 2019 Based on the legal advice
oblained in this respect, management of BFHL is confident of seltling this matter with NHAI wilhoul any lass

Baharampore Farakka Highways Limited, Raiganj Dalkhola Highways Limiled and Farakka Raiganj Highways Limited as at 31 March 2019 has received claims aggregating to ¥ 196,905 80 lakhs from
Hindustan Construction Company-its ultimale holding company and EPC cantractor for various projects entered by (he Company. The Company has preferred claims on National Highways Aulharilies ol
India (NHAI). The Company recognises lhe claim income based on receipt of lhe award. The Company shall repay the amounl to HCC only when its realises lhe award income from NHAI In view of this
claim income has been disclosed as contingent liability

Name of tha BOT subsidiary Amountin T

Baharampore-Farakka Highways Limited 66,111.37
Farakka-Raiganj Highways Limited 71,51443
Raiganj Dalkhola Highways Limiled 59,180.00
Total claims preferred by HCC 196,805.80

Raiganj Dalkhola Highways Limited ('RDHL'), a subsidiary of HCL, has received a notice from NHAI for terminalion of the road construction project being carried oul under this enlity. RDHL has not accepted
the contenlion of NHAI as the requisite land to carry out the desired work was nol made available by NHAI. RDHL has preferred a claim of  368.00 crore belore arbitration Iribunal for wronglul lermination
of the project by NHAI and based on legal advise it is confident of racovering entire cosl incurred on the project Further, RDHL has also filed claims amounting to ¥ 802,00 crore towards losses sullered by
itlill 31 March 2017 on account of delay in providing land and consequent delay in complelion of the praject which are presently referred lo arbitration for which constitution of Arbitral Tribunal lo adjudicale
lhis dispute is awaited. Further lhe net worth of RDHL, at lhis juncture, is also positive. Based on lhe legal advice obtained in this respecl, Management is confident of recovering the oulslanding receivables
of ¥ 177.42 crores from NHAI and exposure in RDHL is considered lo be fully recoverable

The Company has given interest free mobilization advance aggregaling to  9,000.00 lakhs to Hinduslan Conslruction Company-ils ullimate holding company and EPC contraclor for various projecls
entered by the Company This said amount have been outstanding and lying in companies book for more than 3 years. The Managemenl feels thal the amount paid as mobilisalion advance stands
recoverable and is shown as current The same will be adjusted upon payment of EPC claims

Inlerest in other entities

Subsidiaries
The Group's subsidiaries as al 31 March 2019 are set out below. Unless otherwise staled, they have share capilal consisting solely of equity shares that are held direclly by the Group, and the proportion of
ownership interests held equals the voling righis held by lhe Group The country of incarporalion is also their principal place of business

QOwnership interest hetd by non

in int o A
Ownarship interest held by the group (%) cantrolling intorests (%) A

Ft i try of i i Prinei tiviti
Name of the antity Country of incorporation As at A at A at As at rincipal activities
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
HCC Power Limited India 100 100.00 - - Power Development
HCC Operalion and Maintenance Limited India 100 100 00 Opleralion &
Mainlenance of Road
Dhule Palesner Operations & Maintenance Limiled India 100 100 00 Opgraklun &
Maintenance of Road
HCC Energy Limited India 100 100 00 . < Power Development

*including through subsidiary companies
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Interest in joint venture

Not
- 31 March 2019

Carrying amount as at
31 March 2018

Invesiment in joint vanturo

Investmant in joint venture

See (A) below 137.23

29281

The Group's joint ventures as at 31 March 2018 are sel out below. The joinl venture have share capital consisting of equity shares and preference shares thal are held direcily by lhe Group, and the
proportion of ownership interesls held equals the voting rights held by the Group. The counlry of incorporation is also their principal place of business

Though the Group's investment in below mentianed enlity exceed 50% of lhe total share capital, these eniities have been classified as joint venlure. The management has assessed whether or nol the
group has conlrol over lhese enlilies based on whelher the group has practical ability lo direct relevant activilies unilalerally. In these cases, based on specific shareholders agreement, the management
concluded that the group does not have practical ability to direcl the relevant activilies unilaterally but has such ability along with the olher shareholders

Name of the entity

Country of
Incorporation

Ownership interost %

Carrying amount as at*
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Principal activilies

HCC Concessions Limited

“Unlisted entity - no quoted price available

Indie

8545 13723 292.81

Caoncassionnries

Refer note 34 3 for the table below provide summarised financial information for joint venture The informalion disclosed reflects the amount presented in the financial statement ol the relevant joinl venlure

to reflect

and not Group's share of those amounts, They have been
modifications for difference in accounling policies

Table below provides summarised financial information for joint venture

made by the Group when using the equity melhod, including fair value adjustments al the time of acquisition and

Particulars HCC Conceesions Limited

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Y lakhs T lakhs

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 13185 24336
Invesimenl Property 2968 4491
Other inlangible Assets 565,355.74 175,288 23
Inlangible assets under development 41,280 63 96,192 27
Financial Assets 52,800 04 37,544 31
Deferred tax assets - 25543
Income tax assels (net) 93340 1,267 35
Olher non current assets 9,485.68 10,061 46
Cuirent Assets
Financial assels 3,548 40 8,690 51
Other current assets 6,904 47 1,598.96
Assets classified as held for sale 162,124 57 470.50
Non-Current Liabilitles
Financial liabilities 77,220.04 215,992.91
Provisions 8563 3,892 20
Current Liabilities
Financial liabililies 8501774 66,803 74
Other current liabilities 832.10 1,134 01
Provisions 11,769 .56 10,634 15
Liabilities diraclly associated with assets classified as held for sale 137,222 91 -
Total Equity 20,446.49 33,200 28
Revenue 32,801.19 67,644 68
Other income 868.21 1,413 65
Construction cosl 9,909 48 26,248.70
Employes benefits expense 594.35 629 18
Finance cosls 19,512 64 20,945 21
Depraciation expensea 8,443.25 11,560 66
Olher expenses 11,226 .25 16,041.69
Exceptional ilems 365.20 (1,195.57)
Loss before tax {16,381.77) (4,171.54)
Income tax expense 438 34 {022)
Loss for the year (16,820,11) (4,171.32)
Olher comprehensive income 3.50 1.05
Tolal Comprehensive Loss for the year (16,816.61) {4,170.27)

Discl d

d by Schedule Ill by way of additional information

Not Assets

Share in Profit or Loss

As % of

Name of Entity Amounl As % of Consolidated Amount Consolidated
(¥ Lakhs) Net Asset (%) proflit and loas
%)

Consolidated {33,330.17) 100.00 {33,793.73) 10000

Parent Company

HCC Infrastructure Company Limited (481.17) 144 (16,997 48) 50 30

Indlan Subsidiary Companies

HCC Power Limited (26,648 20) 7995 (2,971.87) 879

HCC Operalion and Mainlenance Limited (7,488 94) 22 47 {1,280 65) 379

Dhule Palesner Operalions & Maintenance Limited {3.763.12) 1129 (3,823 03) 1131

HCC Energy Limited 50.09 (0.15) 067 (0.00)

Indian Joint Venture

HCC Congessions Limiled 13,722 54 {41.17)
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The Group is principally engaged in a single i eegment viz "Infrastruclure development”. The Group is primarily operating in India which is considered lo be as a single geographical segmenl
37  Recent Accounting Update
37,1 Ind AS 116 Leases

37.2

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on 30 March 2019 and il replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual perieds beginning an or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116

sets aul the tor the X hion and b of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-batance sheet mods! similar lo the accounting
for finance leases under Ind AS 17, The includes twa 11 p for lessees ~ lenses of low-value' assets (e.g., personal compulers) and shor-tarm leases {l.e,, leases with a lease
term af 12 monihs or less). At the commencement date of a loase, a lessea wil recognise a habity to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an assel representing the right to use the undetlying
asset during the lease term (i e., lhe right-of-use assat). Lessees wil be required 1o /] IHl the inlerest exp on the leass liability and the depreciation expense on lhe right-of-uge asset

Lessees will be also required to remeasure Lhe lease habily upon the occurrance of cattain events (0.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate used lo determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjusiment to the nghl-of-use asset
Based on the ad of Ind AS 118 will not have any material impact on the cansolidaled financial slalements of the Company

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments:

On 30 March 2018, Minislry of Corporate Affairs has natified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncerlainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12 A ing to the i ies need lo the
probability of the relevant tax aulhorily accepling each tax treatment, or group of tax lrealments, thal Lhe companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute
the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax Ireatment when delermining taxable profit (ax loss), tax bases, unused lax losees, unused tax credits and tax rales

The standard permits two possible methods of transition —

i) Full ive app! = Under this ppendix C will be applied ively Lo each prior reporting period p in with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Palicies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Erars, wilhout using hindsighl and

it) Retrospeclively with cumulalive effect of inttially applying Appendix C i by adjusting equity on initial licalion, withoul adjusti p

The effeclive dale for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or afler 1 April 2019, The Company will adopt the standard on 1 April 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative
effect in equity on the dale of initial application i.e. 1 April 2019 without adjusting comparatives
Effeclive date for applicalion of these amendments is annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2019,

The Company is ing lhe above requil of lhe and the impact on the financial stalements

This is a y of signi ing policies and olher explanatory infarmation referred to in our audit
reporl of even date
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